
 

 

 
 

City of Apopka 
Planning Commission 

Meeting Agenda 
May 12, 2015 

5:01 PM @ CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 
 
I.     CALL TO ORDER 

If you wish to appear before the Planning Commission, please submit a “Notice of 

Intent to Speak” card to the Recording Secretary. 

II.    OPENING AND INVOCATION 

Election of Chairman 

Meeting Procedures Overview - Andrew Hand, Esq. - Shepard, Smith & Cassady P.A. 

1 Meeting Procedures Overview - Andrew Hand, Esq. - Shepard, Smith & Cassady. 

III.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1 Approve minutes of the Planning Commission meeting held April 14, 2015, at 5:01 p.m. 

IV.    PUBLIC HEARING: 

1. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE 

AMENDMENT – Everlasting Covenant Christian Center, Inc. from Residential 

Low (0-5 du/ac) to Office (0.3 FAR), for property located west of Piedmont 

Wekiwa Road, north of US 441. (1250 Piedmont Wekiwa Road). (Parcel ID #: 

13-21-28-0000-00-071) 

2. CHANGE OF ZONING – Everlasting Covenant Christian Center, Inc. from R-1 

to Planned Unit Development (PUD-PO/I), for property located west of Piedmont 

Wekiwa Road, north of US 441. (1250 Piedmont Wekiwa Road). (Parcel ID #: 

13-21-28-0000-00-071) 

1



Page 2 
 

 

3. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE 
AMENDMENT – Joseph E. and Jeff P. Ball, from Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) to 
Office (0.3 FAR), for property located west of Piedmont Wekiwa Road, north of 
US 441. (1166 Piedmont Wekiwa Road). (Parcel ID #: 13-21-28-0000-00-030) 

 
4. CHANGE OF ZONING – Joseph E. and Jeff P. Ball, from R-1 to Planned Unit 

Development (PUD-PO/I), for property located west of Piedmont Wekiwa Road, 
north of US 441. (1166 Piedmont Wekiwa Road). (Parcel ID #: 13-21-28-0000-
00-030) 

 
5. CHANGE OF ZONING/MASTER PLAN – Avian Pointe – Apopka Clear Lake 

Investments, LLC – From “City” Planned Unit Development (PUD) (89.47 AC) 
and “County” A-2 (ZIP) (5.29 AC) to “City” Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-
3), for property located east of S.R. 429, south of Peterson Road, and north of 
Lust Road. (Parcel ID Nos. 07-21-28-0000-00-002 & 07-21-28-0000-00-023) 

 
6. CHANGE OF ZONING/MASTER PLAN & PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT 

PLAN – Marden Ridge – owned by Emerson Point Associates, LLLP; Applicant 
MMI Development, Inc., c/o Michael E. Wright, Esq.; Engineer GAI Consultants, 
Inc., c/o Anthony Call, P.E. – from R-3 (Residential) and C-1 (Commercial) to 
Planned Unit Development (R-3/C-1) for property located Between S.R. 451 and 
Marden Road, south of Ocoee Apopka Road, and north of the Apopka 
Expressway. (Parcel ID No. 17-21-28-0000-00-029) 

 
7. CHANGE OF ZONING/SMALL LOT OVERLAY DISTRICT MASTER 

PLAN/PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN – Silver Oaks – owned by 
Tallman Development Company, c/o Ed Hampden; engineer is Poulos & 
Bennett, LLC, c/o Marc Stehli, P.E. – From R-3 to R-3/Small Lot Overlay 
District, for property located north of East Keene Road, west of South Sheeler 
Avenue (2220 S. Sheeler Road). (Parcel ID Nos. 22-21-28-0000-00-078, 22-21-
28-0000-00-079, 22-21-28-0000-00-081, 22-21-28-0000-00-082, 22-21-28-
0000-00-105, 22-21-28-0000-00-108, 22-21-28-0000-00-109, 22-21-28-0000-
00-114, 22-21-28-0000-00-117, 22-21-28-0000-00-122) 

 
V.     SITE PLANS: 
 

1. MASS GRADING PLAN - Marden Ridge – owned by Emerson Point Associates, 
LLLP; Applicant MMI Development, Inc., c/o Michael E. Wright, Esq.; Engineer 
GAI Consultants, Inc., c/o Anthony Call, P.E., for property located Between S.R. 
451 and Marden Road, south of Ocoee Apopka Road, and north of the Apopka 
Expressway. (Parcel ID No. 17-21-28-0000-00-029) 

 
2. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT – Rock Springs Estates, owned by Rock 

Springs Estates; applicant is Pulte Group, c/o Doug Hoffman, P.E.; engineering 
firm is Donald W. McIntosh Associates, Inc., c/o John T. Townsend, P.E., 
located south of West Lester Road, east of Vick Road. (Parcel ID Nos. 3-20-28-
0000-00-015, 33-20-28-0000-00-118, 33-20-28-0000-00-003) 

 

2



Page 3 
 

 

VI.    OLD BUSINESS: 

VII.   NEW BUSINESS: 

VIII.  ADJOURNMENT: 

 

********************************************************************************************************** 
All interested parties may appear and be heard with respect to this agenda.  Please be advised that, under state law, if you decide to appeal 
any decision made by the City Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, you will need a record of the 
proceedings, and that, for such purpose, you may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes a 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.   The City of Apopka does not provide a verbatim record.    
 
In accordance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), persons with disabilities needing a special accommodation to participate in any 
of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk's Office at 120 East Main Street, Apopka, FL  32703, telephone (407) 703-1704, no less 
than 48 hours prior to the proceeding. 
  

3



Page 4 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1 Meeting Procedures Overview - Andrew Hand, Esq. - Shepard, Smith & Cassady. 

  

4



Formal Quasi-Judicial Hearings  

1.) Introductions. The Chairman shall read the case style and nature of the issue. 

2.) Affected Party determination.  

3.) Ex parte. The Board Members shall disclose any ex parte communications that may have occurred. 

(The petitioner and any affected party may ask questions about these communications directed 

through the Chairman.) 

4.) Swearing In. The Petitioner, staff and all witnesses shall be collectively sworn. 

5.) Staff Presentation. City staff shall present any staff, board, or other report on the matter. These reports 

and any other documentary evidence shall become a part of the record. Evidence will be presented 

through oral testimony of witnesses and documentary evidence. 

6.) Petitioner Presents Its Case.  The Petitioner may include a description of the nature of the Petition if 

there is additional information that has not been previously provided by the City staff. The Petitioner 

may introduce any documentary evidence and elicit testimony through witnesses. 

7.) Affected Party for the Petition Any affected person will present their case clearly indicating whether 

they are in support of the Petition.  

8.) Affected party against the Petition.  Any affected person will present their case clearly indicating 

whether they are opposed to the Petition.  

9.)  Any rebuttal(s) by staff or Petitioner. 

11.) Close of presentation by petitioner, staff, and affected parties.  

12.) Public Hearing.  

13.) Close of Public Hearing and Deliberation and Vote of the Board.  

 

5



Page 6 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1 Approve minutes of the Planning Commission meeting held April 14, 2015, at 5:01 p.m. 

  

6



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON APRIL 14, 2015, AT 5:01 

P.M. IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, APOPKA, FLORIDA. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Steve Hooks, James Greene, Melvin Birdsong, Tony Foster, Robert Ryan, 

Pamela Toler, and Mallory Walters 

 

ABSENT:   Orange County Public Schools (Non-voting) 

 

OTHERS PRESENT:  Glenn Irby – City Administrator, Andrew Hand, Esq., R. Jay Davoll, P.E. - 

Community Development Director/City Engineer, David Moon, AICP - Planning Manager, Carol 

Matthews, Tom Matthews, Linda Laurendeau, Mark Stroup, Jennifer Wandersleben, Jeong Park, Jody 

Barry, Dick Davis, John Townsend, Borron Owen, Matt Manning, Suzanne Kidd, Ray Moe, Tony Luke, 

and Jeanne Green – Community Development Department Office Manager/Recording Secretary. 

 

OPENING AND INVOCATION:  Chairperson Hooks called the meeting to order and called for a 

moment of silent prayer.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 

 

Chairperson Hooks introduced Tony Foster as a new member of the Planning Commission. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  

 

Chairperson Hooks asked if there were any corrections or additions to the minutes of the regular meeting 

on March 10, 2015, held at 5:01 p.m.  

 

Chairperson Hooks asked for a motion to approve the minutes, with the following corrections, of the 

Planning Commission meeting held on March 10, 2015, at 5:01 p.m. 

 
Page 6:  MOTION: … Aye votes were cast by Steve Hooks, James Greene, Melvin Birdsong, Ben 

Dreiling, James Greene, Robert Ryan, Pamela Toler, and Mallory Walters (6-0). 

 
Page 8:  MOTION: … Aye votes were cast by Steve Hooks, James Greene, Melvin Birdsong, Ben 

Dreiling, James Greene, Robert Ryan, Pamela Toler, and Mallory Walters (6-0). 

 

Motion:      Mallory Walters made a motion to approve the revised Planning Commission minutes 

from the regular meeting on March 10, 2015, meeting at 5:01. Melvin Birdsong 

seconded the motion.  Aye votes were cast by Steve Hooks, James Greene, Melvin 

Birdsong, Tony Foster, Robert Ryan, Pamela Toler, and Mallory Walters (7-0). 

 

MORATORIUM – RESTAURANTS OR FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS WITH DRIVE-THRU 

OR DRIVE-IN SERVICE – David Moon, AICP, Planning Manager, stated that the City of Apopka will 

soon embark upon a Community-Wide Visioning Process to identify current and long-term preferences 

for the development and character of neighborhoods and the Apopka community as a whole.  Recent 

trends in the fast-food service industry utilize dual and stacked service lanes for which current 

development standards and design guidelines did not anticipate additional needs for land area, their 

associated on-site land use impacts, or potential nuisances to abutting properties.  Inadequate site design 

of fast-food services restaurants and associated drive-through lanes has led to business practices placing 

employees, some of whom are teenagers, outdoors standing within service lanes or drive aisles to take 

customer orders, creating potential public health and safety concerns for the employee.  In the course of 

recent evaluation of development plan applications for fast food restaurants with drive through lanes, staff 
7



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON APRIL 14, 2015, AT 5:01 P.M. 
 

 2 

has identified land use impacts incompatible to the size of the business and their potential impacts 

adjoining and surrounding land uses.  Staff has determined that restaurant and/or food service operations 

devoted to providing food and beverage products to customers in drive through lanes have the potential to 

negatively impact adjoining land uses due to certain common operational characteristics. The Community-

wide Visioning Process may find that residents of some neighborhoods find fast food restaurants with 

drive a through service incompatible with the residential character of the surrounding area, including 

traffic impacts and noise levels that may degrade the desired environ of such residential areas. 
 
Per Section 1.08.13, Definitions, of the Land Development Code (LDC), a fast food restaurant means: an 
establishment whose principal business is the sale of food or beverage in a ready-to-consume state for 
consumption within the building, within a motor vehicle parked on the premises or off the premises as 
carry out orders.  The principal method of operation includes, but is not limited to, the following 
characteristics: food or beverages are usually served in paper, plastic or other disposable container; there 
is generally not waiter or waitress service; food and beverages are served at a counter or window to be 
consumed elsewhere; drive-through service is often available. 
  

The proposed ordinance is applicable to the entire jurisdictional area of the City.  Fast-food restaurants are 

currently a prohibited use within the Downtown Development District (Sec. 3.03.E.1., LDC,) and 

restaurants are prohibited in the Neighborhood Commercial (CN) zoning district (Sec. 2.02.11.C, LDC.).  

Elsewhere, drive-in (drive-through) restaurants within C-1, C-2, and C-3 must be at least 200 feet from 

residential areas, as measured from the property line. 

 

The proposed ordinance is currently under review by the city attorney’s office.  Any significant changes 

will be forwarded to the City Council prior to the hearing date.  If changes are considered minor, they will 

be presented at the hearing. 

 

Recommend approval to establish a Time-Limited Moratorium on the issuance of building permits and/or 

the receipt of preliminary or final development plan submittals for restaurant or food service operations 

with drive through lane or drive-in service, such moratorium to extend until January 7, 2016. 

 

This item is considered legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and made a 

part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 

Ms. Walters commented that staff stated the dual menu boards need additional space.  She said she knows 

that the McDonald’s down the street didn’t need additional space.  Staff also talks about safety issues.  She 

said she thinks the dual menus mitigate that safety issue but not having one long line.  She asked what is 

next.  Dollar stores?  These are businesses.  The City has a Land Development Code right now that 

addresses this.  It comes before the Commission.  We have planning meetings to say yes this meets our 

code or doesn’t.  Are we changing the code and land use and?  In the whole City of Apopka we have land 

use and we have zoning where a restaurant cannot build or develop.  That’s already there so are we 

changing the code to accommodate something that we don’t want more of.  She said that she thinks this is 

restricting commerce that is not as big a problem as has been perceived.  That problem is people say we 

have too many of them but what we have now, she does not feel that there are safety issues.  She stated 

that she hasn’t been to any fast food restaurant where there has been somebody standing outside taking 

orders. 

 

In response to questions by Chairman Hooks, Mr. Moon stated that during the moratorium time frame, 

staff will review the Land Development Code, prepare changes to present to the Planning Commission 

8



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON APRIL 14, 2015, AT 5:01 P.M. 
 

 3 

and they will have the opportunity to make changes or recommendations and then those will be forwarded 

to City Council as amendments to the Land Development Code and development standards.  The City 

Attorney has completed their review of the ordinance and the revised ordinance was incorporated into the 

Planning Commission packet.  They feel that the City is on good legal footing to proceed with something 

like this.  He stated that Mr. Hand may wish to speak on behalf of the Attorney’s office, but their changes 

were incorporated into the ordinance. 

 

In response to a question by Chairperson Hooks, Mr. Hand stated the City Attorney’s office is comfortable 

with the ordinance.  

 

In response to a question by Ms. Walters, Mr. Moon stated that in the last few weeks, staff has not 

received any preliminary or final development plans for fast-food restaurants in the City of Apopka. 

 

Chairperson Hooks opened the meeting for public hearing.   With no one wishing to speak, Chairperson 

Hooks closed the public hearing. 

 

Motion: James Greene made a motion to recommend approval of a Time-Limited Moratorium 

on the issuance of building permits and/or the receipt of preliminary or final 

development plan submittals for restaurant or food service operations with drive 

through lane or drive-in service, such moratorium to extend until January 7, 2016.  

Motion seconded by Pamela Toler. Aye votes were cast by Steve Hooks, James 

Greene, Melvin Birdsong, and Pamela Toler; Robert Ryan and Mallory Walters 

voted nay; and Tony Foster abstained from voting. (4-2). 

 
FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – ADVENTIST HEALTH SYSTEM/SUNBELT, INC. – FLORIDA 
HOSPITAL APOPKA – R. Jay Davoll, P.E., Community Development Director/City Engineer stated this 
is a request to recommend approval of the Final Development Plan for Adventist Health System/Sunbelt, 
Inc. DBA Florida Hospital Apopka.  The owner is Adventist Health System/Sunbelt, Inc. The applicant is 
Florida Hospital Apopka, c/o Raymond Moe. The engineer is Donald W. McIntosh Associates, Inc., c/o 
John T. Townsend, P.E.  The property is located south of Harmon Road, west of Ocoee Apopka Road and 
east of S.R. 429.  The future land use is Mixed Use and the zoning designation is Planned Unit 
Development (PUD/Mixed EC). The existing use is vacant land.  The proposed use is a hospital with 
ancillary uses and medical offices (including a medical helipad.  The hospital to be a seven-story, 120-bed, 
with 80,000 square feet of medical offices.  The tract size is 33.7 +/- acres.  The proposed density is what 
is allowed by the PUD Master Plan adopted on November 19, 2004.    
 
The subject property was annexed into the City of Apopka on December 19, 2007, through the adoption of 
Ordinance No. 2013.  Development of the hospital site must occur consistent with the PUD Master Plan 
and its adopted PUD development standards.  The Florida Hospital Final Development Plan is consistent 
with the PUD Master Plan.   
 
Transportation infrastructure improvements shall occur consistent with the Transportation Infrastructure 
Agreement. As this Agreement has not yet been signed by the City, and as the optional transportation 
improvements have not yet been identified, staff is recommending that a building permit not be issued 
until these matters are resolved.  Modification of the Final Development Plan to address any 
improvements within the Transportation Infrastructure Agreement shall only require review by the 
Development Review Committee unless any such plan changes are determined by the Community 
Development Director to be substantial modifications warranting Planning Commission and\or City 
Council review. 
 

9



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON APRIL 14, 2015, AT 5:01 P.M. 
 

 4 

The proposed Final Development Plan is consistent the Florida Hospital Replacement Campus Master 
Plan, Land Development Code, Comprehensive Plan and Development Design Guidelines.  
 
Stormwater run-off and drainage will be accommodated by on-site stormwater management system that 
complies with the City’s stormwater drainage standards. 
 
Buffers are provided consistent with the PUD Master Plan Sheets.  Landscape buffers along Ocoee 
Apopka Road, Harmon Road, and SR. 429 are 13,  11, and 15 feet in width, respectively.  
 
Based on the number of new trees planted to replace those removed, a mitigation fee will not apply to this 
project.  The table appearing below denotes the tree inches removed and replaced. 
 
Tree Program: The following is a summary of the tree replacement program: 
 
Total tree inches on-site(*): 11,154 
Total number of specimen trees (24” or greater): 9 
Total number of specimen trees (24” or greater) retained: 1 
Total number of specimen trees (24” or greater removed: 8 
Total tree inches removed: 10,018 
Total tree inches retained: 1,136 
Total tree inches replaced: 6,170 
Maximum tree stock formula and calculations: 
1,468,538.2 – 6,000 = 1,462,538.2/1,000 = 1,462,54 x 3.5 = 5,118.89 + 21 = 5,139.89 
Total inches post development: 7,306 
Site clearing area in square feet: 1,462,538.2 
(*) Pine and Camphor trees are not included.  

 

A total of 884 parking spaces are provided, of which 795 are standards spaces, 57 handicapped spaces, 2 

electric car recharge stations, and 10 motorcycle spaces.  The main entrance to the site is from Ocoee 

Apopka Road with a second access from Harmon Road.  A delivery-only entrance is also provided along 

Harmon Road.  A future LYNX bus transit shelter and pull-off lane are also planned along Ocoee Apopka 

Road.  Helicopter approach and departure are limited to the flight path lines appearing in the Final 

Development Plan. 

 

The Final Development Plan includes a master sign plan.  Approval of the Final Development Plan 

includes the master sign plan. 

 

The design of the building exterior meets the intent of the City’s Development Design Guidelines and was 

provided with the PUD Master Plan.  The three other sides of the building exterior will be in keeping with 

the elevation shown and will be applicable to the Small Area Overlay District, as reviewed by staff. 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Florida Hospital Replacement Campus 

Final Development Plan Phase subject to the findings of the staff report and the condition that a building 

permit will not be issued until the Transportation Improvement Agreement has been signed by the City. 

 

This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 

made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 

Jennifer Wandersleben, Florida Hospital, stated that she and several experts were available to answer any 

questions the Commission or public had on their project.  The complimented staff and said that they 

10



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON APRIL 14, 2015, AT 5:01 P.M. 
 

 5 

worked diligently with Florida Hospital on this project. 

 

Mr. Davoll stated it was a pleasure working with Florida Hospital and their contractors. 

 

In response to a question by Mr. Foster, Ms. Wandersleben stated that the decision to move the hospital 

from its current location was the accessibility to S.R. 429 and 414 as well as the Wekiva Parkway for 

better access.  She stated that currently approximately 50% of current patients are transported to other 

Florida Hospitals for services not being provided at the current location.  The new hospital will keep 

patients in Apopka rather than transferring them to other hospitals. 

 
Chairperson Hooks opened the meeting for public hearing.   With no one wishing to speak, Chairperson 
Hooks closed the public hearing. 

Motion:   Mallory Walters made a motion to recommend approval of the Florida Hospital 
Replacement Campus Final Development Plan Phase subject to the findings of the 
staff report and the condition that a building permit will not be issued until the 
Transportation Improvement Agreement has been signed by the City and subject to 
the information and findings in the staff report.  Melvin Birdsong seconded the 
motion. Aye votes were cast by Steve Hooks, James Greene, Melvin Birdsong, Tony 
Foster, Robert Ryan, Pamela Toler, and Mallory Walters (7-0). 

 

OLD BUSINESS:  

 

Planning Commission: 

 

Wekiva [Riverwalk] Shopping Center – Chairperson Hooks commended Mr. Moon on his work getting 

the new sign for the center.  He said the new sign looks great. 

 

Public - None. 

 

NEW BUSINESS:      

 

Planning Commission: 

 

Letter from Mary Pinson – Chairperson Hooks stated that the letter was addressed to the Planning 

Commission and the City Administrator.  Upon review of the letter Ms. Pinson’s concerns should be 

addressed by Code Enforcement and not the Planning Commission. 

 

In response to a question by Chairperson Hooks, Mr. Davoll stated that staff was in agreement. 

 

Resignation – Chairperson Hooks announced that this would be his last meeting as he has submitted his 

resignation to Mayor Kilsheimer for a number of reasons.  He stated that he has been here for a long time 

and served for over 25 years on this commission or Land Development Review Board and it is time for 

new blood in the City.  He said he wanted to make it clear that he was not asked to resign.  It was his 

decision and he spoke with the Mayor and feels that it is in the best interest of the City that we move in 

that direction.  He thanked the Commissioners that he has worked with for the last few years and those 

who he has worked with for many years past that who are no longer with us on the Commission and some 

are not with us at all.  He stated that he appreciated Mayor Land and Richard Anderson and the confidence 

11



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON APRIL 14, 2015, AT 5:01 P.M. 
 

 6 

they had in him to do this for so long.  He said he has enjoyed immensely representing the residents of 

Apopka.  That was what he felt was their responsibility and to the best of his abilities he has done that.  

He leaves happy to know that he is leaving it in good hands with those of you that remain.  He thanked 

Mr. Davoll and Mr. Moon for the years they have worked together. 

 

Public - None.  

 

ADJOURNMENT:   The meeting was adjourned at 5:20 p.m. 

 
 

 

 

James Greene, Vice-Chairperson 

 

 

 

 

R. Jay Davoll, P.E. 

Community Development Director 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
G:  \Shared\4020\ADMINISTRATION\PLANNING COMMISSION\Minutes\2015\04-14-15 

12



Page 13 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE 

AMENDMENT – Everlasting Covenant Christian Center, Inc. from Residential 

Low (0-5 du/ac) to Office (0.3 FAR), for property located west of Piedmont 

Wekiwa Road, north of US 441. (1250 Piedmont Wekiwa Road). (Parcel ID #: 

13-21-28-0000-00-071) 

  

13



CITY OF APOPKA 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  May 12, 2015 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
          OTHER:          Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map 
           Existing Use Map 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: EVERLASTING COVENANT CHRISTIAN CENTER, INC. – 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE 
AMENDMENT 

     
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 13-21-28-0000-00-071 
 

Request:   COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - SMALL SCALE 
    FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
    FROM: RESIDENTIAL LOW (0-5 DU/AC) 
    TO:  PUD/PO/I (0.30 FAR)  

(PROFESSIONAL OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL) 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
OWNER:   Everlasting Covenant Christian Center, Inc. 
 
APPLICANT:   Telesis Services, LLC, c/o Greg Banta and Scott Banta 
 
LOCATION: West of Piedmont Wekiwa Road, north of U.S. 441, south of East Semoran 

Boulevard (1250 Piedmont Wekiwa Road) 
 
EXISTING USE:  Church 
 
CURRENT ZONING: R-1  
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Church 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Planned Unit Development (PUD/PO/I) (Note: this Future Land Use Map 

amendment request is being processed along with the request to change the 
Zoning Map designation) 

 
TRACT SIZE:   2.73 +/- acres 
    1.67 +/- developable (1.06 +/- submerged) 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 8 Units 
    PROPOSED: 21,823 Sq. Ft. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Dir.    Public Ser. Dir. 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Dir.     Police Chief  
  
G:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Small Scale\2015\Everlasting Covenant Christian Center FLU PC 05-12-15 

14



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

EVERLASTING COVENANT CHRISTIAN CENTER, INC. - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 

 

The subject parcel was annexed into the City of Apopka on December 16, 1998, through the adoption of 

Ordinance No. 1209.  The proposed Small-Scale Future Land Use Amendment is being requested by the owner.  

Pursuant to Florida law, properties containing less than ten acres are eligible to be processed as a small-scale 

amendment.  Such process does not require review by State planning agencies. 

 

A request to assign a Future Land Use Designation of Rural Settlement is compatible with the designations 

assigned to abutting properties.  The FLUM application covers approximately 2.73 acres, of which 1.67 acres is 

developable. The property owner intends to use the site for a church.  

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 

adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 

with the Office Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD/PO/I) 

Zoning classifications.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 

 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: Because this Future Land Use Amendment represents a change to a non-
residential designation, notification of Orange County Public Schools is not required. 
 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 

public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on April 10, 2015. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

May 12, 2015 - Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

May 20, 2015- City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

June 3, 2015 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

April 24, 2015 – Public Notice and Notification 

May 22, 2015 – Ordinance Heading Ad 

May 29, 2015 – ¼ Page w/Map Ad 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area and recommends approval of the change in 

Future Land Use from Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) to Office (0.30 FAR) for the property owned by Everlasting 

Covenant Christian Center, LLC, subject to adoption of zoning regulations that assure compatibility with 

residential character of areas to the east and north. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

15



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

EVERLASTING COVENANT CHRISTIAN CENTER, INC. - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 
 

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-1 Single-Family Residence 

East (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) 
 

R-1A Single-Family Residence, Vacant Land, 

Blue Lake 

South (City) 

South (County) 

Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) 

Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) 

R-1 

A-1 

Vacant Land 

Stormwater Pond 

West (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-1 Vacant Land, Lake Page 

 

II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 
The general character of the area surrounding the subject property is compatible with this development of 
agricultural uses and rural county estate residential.  The property lies north of S.R. 441 and west of Piedmont 
Wekiwa Road. 
  

 Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Area: No 

 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 

 Area of Critical State Concern: No 

 DRI / FQD: No 

 

 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement on 

October 26, 2004.  The subject property is located within the Core Area of the Joint Planning area.   

 

 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act:   The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the adopted 

Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  While located within the Wekiva River Basing Study Area, 

the subject property is not located within the Protection Area. The proposed amendment is consistent with the 

adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been 

reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of 

Apopka's adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the 

following policies: 

 

 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 

 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 

 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 

Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that there are karst features present on the subject property. 

 

 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The Property fronts Piedmont Wekiwa Road.  The vegetative 

communities present are urban; the soils present are Tavares fine sand; approximately 1.06 +/- acres of the 

property is submerged in Lake Page, and the terrain has a 0-5 percent slope. 

 

 The proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, including Policy 3.1.j Office 

Future Land Use designation. 
16



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

EVERLASTING COVENANT CHRISTIAN CENTER, INC. - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 
 

 

 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future land 

use designation for the Property is Offce (0.30 FAR).  Based on the housing element of the City's 

Comprehensive Plan, this amendment will increase the City’s future population.   

 

CALCULATIONS: 

ADOPTED (City designation): 8 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 21 persons 

PROPOSED (City designation): 0 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 0 persons 

 

 Housing Needs: This amendment will not negatively impact the housing needs as projected in the 

Comprehensive Plan.   

 

 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the 

Conservation Element, a habitat study is required for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  This site 

is less than ten acres.  A habitat study will not be required at the time of a development plan application.   

 

 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to Chapter 

3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan.  The subject site has access to Piedmont Wekiwa Road, 

which is a major collector road. 

 

 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  City of Apopka ;  81  GPD/Capita; 

 81 GPD / Capita 

 

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 

 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  1568 GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  3273 GPD 

 

4. Capacity available: Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  81 GPD/Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: None 

 

 Potable Water Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  City of Apopka ;  177 GPD/Capita; 

177 GPD/Capita 

 

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka 17



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

EVERLASTING COVENANT CHRISTIAN CENTER, INC. - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 
 

 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:    3632 GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  4365 GPD 

 

4. Capacity available: Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177 GPD/Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177 GPD/Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area:  No            

 

 Solid Waste 

 

1. Facilities serving the site: City of Apopka  

 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka  

 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  84  GPD/Capita  

 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  44  GPD/Capita 

 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 

development approval. 

 

Infrastructure Information 

 

 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 

 

 Permitting agency: St. John's River Water Management District 

 

 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  21.981  GPD 

 

 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696  GPD 

 

 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 
18



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

EVERLASTING COVENANT CHRISTIAN CENTER, INC. - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 
 

 

 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: Yes 

 

 Drainage Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site: Lake Page  

 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation:  25 year - 96 hour design storm  

 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 25 year - 96 hour design storm  

 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  

 

 Recreation 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System; 3 AC/1000 capita 

 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.063 AC 

 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  N/A AC 

 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of development 

approval. 

  

19



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

EVERLASTING COVENANT CHRISTIAN CENTER, INC. - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 
 

Everlasting Covenant Christian Center, Inc. 
2.73 +/- Acres 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  8 dwelling units 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 21,823 sq. ft. 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) 

To: Office (0.30 FAR) 
Proposed Zoning Change 

From: R-1 
To: Planned Unit Development (PUD/PO/I) 

Parcel ID #: 13-21-28-0000-00-071 
 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

  

Subject 
Property 

20



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

EVERLASTING COVENANT CHRISTIAN CENTER, INC. - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 
 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 
 

 

  

Subject 

Property 

21



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

EVERLASTING COVENANT CHRISTIAN CENTER, INC. - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 
 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
22



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

EVERLASTING COVENANT CHRISTIAN CENTER, INC. - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 
 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 

 

23



Page 24 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. CHANGE OF ZONING – Everlasting Covenant Christian Center, Inc. from R-1 

to Planned Unit Development (PUD-PO/I), for property located west of Piedmont 

Wekiwa Road, north of US 441. (1250 Piedmont Wekiwa Road). (Parcel ID #: 

13-21-28-0000-00-071) 

  

24



CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  May 12, 2015 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
          OTHER:          Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map 
           Existing Use Map 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: CHANGE OF ZONING - EVERLASTING COVENANT CHRISTIAN 
CENTER, INC.  

     
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 13-21-28-0000-00-071 
 

Request:   CHANGE OF ZONING 
    FROM: R-1 (RESIDENTIAL) 
    TO:  PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD/PO/I) (0.30 FAR) 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
OWNER:   Everlasting Covenant Christian Center, Inc. 
 
APPLICANT:   Telesis Services, LLC, c/o Greg Banta and Scott Banta 
 
LOCATION: West of Piedmont Wekiwa Road, north of U.S. 441, south of East Semoran 

Boulevard (1250 Piedmont Wekiwa Road) 
 
EXISTING USE:  Church 
 
FLUM DESIGNATION: Residential Low Density (0 – 5 du/ac); (proposed -- Office) 
 
CURRENT ZONING: R-1  
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Church 
 
PROPOSED 
ZONING: Planned Unit Development (PUD/PO/I) (Note: this Change of Zoning request is 

being processed along with the request to change the Future Land Use Map 
designation to Office) 

 
TRACT SIZE:   2.73 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 14 Units 
    PROPOSED: 21,823 Sq. Ft. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director    Police Chief   
 
 

G:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Small Scale\2015\Everlasting Covenant Christian Center ZON PC 05-12-15 25



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

EVERLASTING COVENANT CHRISTIAN CENTER, INC. – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 
 
The subject parcel was annexed into the City of Apopka on December 16, 1998, through the adoption of 
Ordinance No. 1209.  The proposed change of zoning is being requested by the owner.   
 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 
adequate public facilities exist to support this zoning change (see attached Zoning Report). 
 
PUD RECOMMENDATIONS:  That the zoning classification of the following described property be 
designated as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with 
the following Master Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 
 
A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be: all such uses permitted within the PO/I (Professional 

Office/Institutional PO\I (zoning category) except for following PO\I uses shall be prohibited:  
   

1. Hospitals, museums, libraries or cultural institutions;  
 

2. Retail establishments, including those for the sale of pharmaceutical, medical and dental supplies or 
other hospital-related items; 
 

3. All other uses listed as prohibited within the Professional Office/Institutional zoning district. 
    
  A church parsonage will require a special exception approval from the Planning Commission. 
 
B. Master Plan requirements, as enumerated in Section 2.02.18 K. of the Apopka Land Development Code, not 

addressed herein are hereby deferred until the submittal and review of the Final Development Plan 
submitted in association with the PUD district.  

 
C. If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by the City within three 

years after approval of these Master Plan provisions, the approval of the Master Plan provisions will expire. 
At such time, the City Council may: 

 
1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Final Development Plan; 
 
2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of new Master Plan 

provisions and any conditions of approval; or 
 
3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

 
D. Unless otherwise approved by City Council through an alternative development guideline that is adequate to 

protect the public health safety and welfare, the following development standards shall apply to the 
development of the Property and for the master site plan: 

 
Building Design Standards: 

 
1. New development shall have architectural features and materials that are residential in character. 

 
a. Any office structure shall have a roof with a 4-to-1 pitch and shall be shingled or tiled. 
 
b. Maximum number of stories allowed is two (2).  Maximum building height of thirty-five (35) 

feet. 
 
c. Windows shall include fenestration detail and/or shutters.  
 26



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

EVERLASTING COVENANT CHRISTIAN CENTER, INC. – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

d. All ground and rooftop utilities shall be screened from view from any public street or adjacent 
property. 

 
e. A main building entrance shall face a public street.  

 
Building Design Guidelines 

 
1. Building exterior design uses residential-scale fenestration that may include: 
 

i. Windows with multi-pane glazing 
 
ii. Dormers or similar architectural features 
 
iii. Roof overhang, cornice, eaves, soffits 

 
2. Building façades that are modulated into house-sized segments or broken into separate buildings are 

encouraged. 
 
3. A portico or porch is encouraged to define a main building entrance. 
 
4. The total area of the first floor of a building shall not exceed 12,000 sq. ft. and the total gross floor 

area of a building shall not exceed 18,000 sq. ft.  The minimum and maximum floor area does not 
apply to churches. 
 

Site Design Standards: 
 
1. The front façade and primary entrance of the building shall be oriented toward the front of the prop-

erty. 
 
2. Minimum front setback of 15 ft. and a maximum of 25 ft. 
 
3. Parking lot shall be screened from the public street by a hedge and wrought-iron style fence or a 3-

foot decorative stone wall.  
 
4. Parking is located at the rear or side of any building.  

 
Signage 

 
1.  Sign copy on a monument sign shall not exceed 36 sq. ft.  
 
2.  No sign shall include changeable sign copy or electronic reader board signage.  
 
3.  An office building shall include wall signage. 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 

with the Office Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD/PO/I) 

Zoning classifications.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: Because this Change of Zoning represents a change to a non-residential 

designation, notification of Orange County Public Schools is not required. 

 

 
27



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

EVERLASTING COVENANT CHRISTIAN CENTER, INC. – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 

public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on April 10, 2015. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

May 12, 2015 - Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

May 20, 2015- City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

June 3, 2015 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

April 24, 2015 – Public Notice and Notification 

May 22, 2015 – Ordinance Heading Ad 

May 29, 2015 – ¼ Page w/Map Ad 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 

and recommends approval of the change in Zoning from R-1 to Planned Unit Development (PUD/PO/I) subject 

to the PUD developments standards for the property owned by Everlasting Covenant Christian Center, LLC. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

28



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

EVERLASTING COVENANT CHRISTIAN CENTER, INC. – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

ZONING REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) A-1 (ZIP) Single-Family Residence 

East (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) 
 

R-1A Single-Family Residence, Vacant 

Land, Blue Lake 

South (City) 

South (County) 

Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) 

Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) 

R-1 

A-1 

Vacant Land 

Stormwater Pond 

West (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-1 Vacant Land, Lake Page 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The property has access to a Collector roadway (Piedmont Wekiwa Road). 

A church is a permissible use within the PO/I zoning category.  Future 
land use designations and zoning categories assigned to properties to the 
north, south, east, and west is predominantly residential and commercial.   

 
COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed PO/I zoning is compatible with policies set forth in the 

Comprehensive Plan.  
 
PO/I DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:    FAR:     0.30 (max.) 
     Open Space:    30 percent 
     Minimum Site Area:   10,000 sq. ft. 
     Minimum Lot Width:   85 ft. 
     Setbacks: Front:   25 ft. 
       Side:   10 ft. 
       Corner: 25 ft. 
       Rear:   10 ft. 
     Adjacent to Residential:  25 ft. 
 
BUFFERYARD 
REQUIREMENTS:  Areas adjacent to all road rights-of-way shall provide a minimum ten (10) 

foot landscaped bufferyard. Areas adjacent residential use shall provide a 
minimum six (6) foot masonry wall within a ten (10) foot landscaped 
bufferyard. 

 
ALLOWABLE 
USES:  Professional offices, medical or dental clinics and offices, establishments 

for the retail sale of pharmaceutical, medical and dental supplies, 
hospitals, museums, libraries, churches and educational facilities. 

  

29



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

EVERLASTING COVENANT CHRISTIAN CENTER, INC. – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

 
Everlasting Covenant Christian Center, Inc. 

2.73 +/- Acres 
Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  14 dwelling units 

Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 21,823 sq. ft. 
Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 

From: Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) 
To: Office (0.30 FAR) 

Proposed Zoning Change 
From: R-1 

To: Planned Unit Development (PUD/PO/I) 
Parcel ID #: 13-21-28-0000-00-071 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

  

Subject 
Property 

30



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

EVERLASTING COVENANT CHRISTIAN CENTER, INC. – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 
 

 

  

Subject 

Property 

31



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

EVERLASTING COVENANT CHRISTIAN CENTER, INC. – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 
 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 32



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

EVERLASTING COVENANT CHRISTIAN CENTER, INC. – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 

 

33



Page 34 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE 

AMENDMENT – Joseph E. and Jeff P. Ball, from Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) to 

Office (0.3 FAR), for property located west of Piedmont Wekiwa Road, north of 

US 441. (1166 Piedmont Wekiwa Road). (Parcel ID #: 13-21-28-0000-00-030) 

  

34



CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  May 12, 2015 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
          OTHER:          Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map 
           Existing Use Map 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE 
AMENDMENT - JOSEPH E. BALL AND JEFF P. BALL 

     
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 13-21-28-0000-00-030 
 

Request:   COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - SMALL SCALE 
    FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
    FROM: RESIDENTIAL LOW (0-5 DU/AC) 
    TO:  OFFICE (0.30 FAR) 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
OWNERS:   Joseph E. Ball and Jeff P. Ball 
 
APPLICANT:   Telesis Services, LLC, c/o Greg Banta and Scott Banta 
 
LOCATION: West of Piedmont Wekiwa Road, north of U.S. 441, south of East Semoran 

Boulevard (1166 Piedmont Wekiwa Road) 
 
EXISTING USE:  Single-family residence 
 
 
CURRENT ZONING: A-1 (ZIP)  
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Professional Office 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Planned Unit Development (PUD/PO/I) (Note: this Future Land Use Map 

amendment request is being processed along with the request to change the 
Zoning Map designation) 

 
TRACT SIZE:   6.49 +/- acres 
    3.72 +/- acres developable (2.77 +/- acres submerged) 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 19 Units 
    PROPOSED: 48,162 Sq. Ft. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director    Police Chief   
 
G:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Small Scale\2015\Joseph E_Jeff P Ball – 1166 Piedmont Wekiwa Rd - FLU PC 05-12-15 35



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

JOSEPH E. BALL AND JEFF P. BALL - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 

 

The subject parcel was annexed into the City of Apopka on December 19, 2007, through the adoption of 

Ordinance No. 2011.  The proposed Small-Scale Future Land Use Amendment is being requested by the owner.  

Pursuant to Florida law, properties containing less than ten acres are eligible to be processed as a small-scale 

amendment.  Such process does not require review by State planning agencies. 

 

A request to assign a Future Land Use Designation of Office is compatible with the designations assigned to 

abutting properties.  The FLUM application covers approximately 6.49 acres, of which 3.72 acres are 

developable. The property owner intends to use the site for a professional office development.  

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 

adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 

with the Office Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD/PO/I) 

Zoning classifications.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 

 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: Because this Future Land Use Amendment represents a change to a non-
residential designation, notification of Orange County Public Schools is not required. 
 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 

public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on April 10, 2015. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

May 12, 2015 - Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

May 20, 2015- City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

June 3, 2015 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

April 24, 2015 – Public Notice and Notification 

May 22, 2015 – Ordinance Heading Ad 

May 29, 2015 – ¼ Page w/Map Ad 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee the proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and 

compatible with the character of the surrounding area and recommends approval of the change in Future Land 

Use from Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) to Office (0.30 FAR) for the property owned by Joseph E. Ball and Jeff P. 

Ball, subject to adoption of zoning regulations that assure compatibility with residential character of areas to the 

east and north. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

36



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

JOSEPH E. BALL AND JEFF P. BALL - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 
 

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) A-1 Single-Family Residence 

East (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) 
 

PUD & R-1A Single-Family Residences, Vacant 

Land, Blue Lake 

South (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-1 Church 

West (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-1 Vacant Land, Lake Page 

 

II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 
The general character of the area surrounding the subject property is compatible with this development of 
professional office.  The property lies north of S.R. 441 and west of Piedmont Wekiwa Road. 
  

 Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Area: No 

 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 

 Area of Critical State Concern: No 

 DRI / FQD: No 

 

 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement on 

October 26, 2004.  The subject property is located within the Core Area of the Joint Planning area.   

 

 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act:   The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the adopted 

Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  While located within the Wekiva River Basing Study Area, 

the subject property is not located within the Protection Area. The proposed amendment is consistent with the 

adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been 

reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of 

Apopka's adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the 

following policies: 

 

 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 

 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 

 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 

Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that there are karst features present on the subject property. 

 

 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The Property fronts Piedmont Wekiwa Road.  The vegetative 

communities present are urban; the soils present are Tavares fine sand; approximately 2.77 +/- acres of the 

property are submerged in Lake Page, and the terrain has a 0-5 percent slope. 

 

The proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, including Policy 3.1.j Office Future Land 

Use designation. 

 37



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

JOSEPH E. BALL AND JEFF P. BALL - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 
 

 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future land 

use designation for the Property is Office (0.30 FAR).  Based on the housing element of the City's 

Comprehensive Plan, this amendment will increase the City’s future population.   

 

CALCULATIONS: 

ADOPTED (City designation): 19 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 51 persons 

PROPOSED (City designation): 0 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 0 persons 

 

 Housing Needs: This amendment will not negatively impact the housing needs as projected in the 

Comprehensive Plan.   

 

 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the 

Conservation Element, a habitat study is required for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  This site 

is less than ten acres.  A habitat study will not be required at the time of a development plan application.   

 

 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to Chapter 

3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan.  The subject site has access to Piedmont Wekiwa Road, 

which is a major collector road. 

 

 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  City of Apopka ;  81  GPD/Capita; 

81 GPD / Capita 

 

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 

 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  3724 GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  7224 GPD 

 

4. Capacity available: Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  81 GPD/Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: None 

 

 Potable Water Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  City of Apopka ;  177 GPD/Capita; 

177 GPD/Capita 

 

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka 

 38



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

JOSEPH E. BALL AND JEFF P. BALL - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:    8626 GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  9632 GPD 

 

4. Capacity available: Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177 GPD/Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177 GPD/Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area:  No           

 

 Solid Waste 

 

1. Facilities serving the site: City of Apopka  

 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka  

 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  204  GPD/Capita  

 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  96  GPD/Capita 

 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 

development approval. 

 

Infrastructure Information 

 

 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 

 

 Permitting agency: St. John's River Water Management District 

 

 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  21.981  GPD 

 

 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696  GPD 

 

 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 39



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

JOSEPH E. BALL AND JEFF P. BALL - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 
 

 

 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: Yes 

 

 Drainage Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site: Lake Page 

 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation:  25 year - 96 hour design storm  

 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 25 year - 96 hour design storm  

 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  

 

 Recreation 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System; 3 AC/1000 capita 

 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.153 AC 

 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  N/A AC 

 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of development 

approval. 

  

40



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

JOSEPH E. BALL AND JEFF P. BALL - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 
 

Joseph E. Ball and Jeff P. Ball 
6.49 +/- Acres 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development: 19 dwelling units 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 48,162 sq. ft. 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) 

To: Office (0.30 FAR) 

Parcel ID #: 13-21-28-0000-00-030 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

  

Subject 

Property 

41



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

JOSEPH E. BALL AND JEFF P. BALL - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 
 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 
 

 

  

Subject 

Property 

42



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

JOSEPH E. BALL AND JEFF P. BALL - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 
 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 43



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

JOSEPH E. BALL AND JEFF P. BALL - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 
 

 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 

 

44



Page 45 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. CHANGE OF ZONING – Joseph E. and Jeff P. Ball, from R-1 to Planned Unit 

Development (PUD-PO/I), for property located west of Piedmont Wekiwa Road, 

north of US 441. (1166 Piedmont Wekiwa Road). (Parcel ID #: 13-21-28-0000-

00-030) 

  

45



CITY OF APOPKA 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  May 12, 2015 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
          OTHER:          Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map 
           Existing Use Map 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: CHANGE OF ZONING - JOSEPH E. BALL AND JEFF P. BALL   
     
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 13-21-28-0000-00-030 
 

Request:   CHANGE OF ZONING 
    FROM: R-1 (RESIDENTIAL) 

TO: PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD/PO/I) 
(PROFESSIONAL OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL)  

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
OWNERS:   Joseph E. Ball and Jeff P. Ball 
 
APPLICANT:   Telesis Services, LLC, c/o Greg Banta and Scott Banta 
 
LOCATION: West of Piedmont Wekiwa Road, north of U.S. 441, south of East Semoran 

Boulevard (1166 Piedmont Wekiwa Road) 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant 
 
FLUM DESIGNATION: Residential Low Density (0 – 5 du/ac); (proposed – Office) 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  A-1 (ZIP)  
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Professional Office 
 
PROPOSED 
ZONING: Planned Unit Development (PUD/PO/I) (Note: this Change of Zoning request is 

being processed along with the request to change the Future Land Use 
Designation from Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) to Office (0.30 FAR)) 

 
TRACT SIZE:   6.49 +/- acres 
    3.72 +/- acres developable (2.77 +/- acres submerged) 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 32 Units 
    PROPOSED: 48,162 Sq. Ft. 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer      Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director    Police Chief  

 
G:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Rezoning\2015\Joseph E_Jeff P Ball – 1166 Piedmont Wekiwa Rd - ZON PC 05-12-15 46



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

JOSEPH E. BALL AND JEFF P. BALL – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 

 

The subject parcel was annexed into the City of Apopka on December 19, 2007, through the adoption of 

Ordinance No. 2011.  The proposed Change of Zoning is being requested by the owner.   

 

A request to assign a zoning designation of PUD/PO/I is compatible with the designations assigned to abutting 

properties.  The zoning application covers approximately 6.49 acres, of which 3.72 acres are developable. The 

property owner intends to use the site for a professional office use.  

 

The subject property is located adjacent to a residential district. Staff recommends the development standards 

below that would allow for limited professional office development and also preserve the residential character 

of the surrounding area: 

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 

adequate public facilities exist to support this zoning change (see attached Zoning Report). 

 

PUD RECOMMENDATIONS:  That the zoning classification of the following described property be 

designated as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with 

the following Master Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 

 
A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be: all such uses permitted within the PO/I (Professional 

Office/Institutional PO\I (zoning category) except for following PO\I uses shall be prohibited:  
   

1. Hospitals, museums, libraries or cultural institutions;  
 

2. Retail establishments, including those for the sale of pharmaceutical, medical and dental supplies or 
other hospital-related items; 
 

3. All other uses listed as prohibited within the Professional Office/Institutional zoning district. 
    
  A church parsonage will require a special exception approval from the Planning Commission. 
 
B. Master Plan requirements, as enumerated in Section 2.02.18 K. of the Apopka Land Development Code, not 

addressed herein are hereby deferred until the submittal and review of the Final Development Plan 
submitted in association with the PUD district.  

 
C. If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by the City within three 

years after approval of these Master Plan provisions, the approval of the Master Plan provisions will expire. 
At such time, the City Council may: 

 
1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Final Development Plan; 
 
2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of new Master Plan 

provisions and any conditions of approval; or 
 
3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

 
D. Unless otherwise approved by City Council through an alternative development guideline that is adequate to 

protect the public health safety and welfare, the following development standards shall apply to the 
development of the Property and for the master site plan: 

 
47



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

JOSEPH E. BALL AND JEFF P. BALL – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

Site Design Standards 

 

1. The front façade and primary entrance of the building shall be oriented toward Piedmont-Wekiwa 

Road with the buildings (s) near the street and parking located to the rear or side of the building.  

Alternatively, the building(s) may be located just outside the required upland buffer to Lake Page 

with parking located between the building and Piedmont-Wekiwa Road.   

 

2.  Minimum front setback of 15 ft. and a maximum of 25 ft. if building oriented to Piedmont-Wekiwa 

Road.   

 

3.  Parking areas shall be screened from the public street by a hedge or a 3-foot decorative stone wall.  

Additional landscaping or earth-berm shall be provided if the building(s) are oriented to Lake Page. 

 

Building Design Standards 

 

New development shall have architectural features and materials that are residential in character. 

 

a. Any office structure shall have a roof with a 4-to-1 pitch and shall be shingled or tiled. 

 

b. Maximum number of stories allowed is two (2).  Maximum building height of thirty-five (35) feet. 

 

c. Windows shall include fenestration detail and/or shutters.  

 

d. All ground and rooftop utilities shall be screened from view from any public street or adjacent 

property. 

 

e. A main building entrance shall face a public street with designate pedestrian walkway leading to a 

sidewalk within the public street. 

 

Building Design Guidelines 

 

1. Building exterior design uses residential-scale fenestration that may include: 

 

i. Windows with multi-pane glazing 

 

ii. Dormers or similar architectural features 

 

iii. Roof overhang, cornice, eaves, soffits 

 

2. Building façades that are modulated into house-sized segments or broken into separate buildings are 

encouraged. 

 

3.   A portico or porch is encouraged to define a main building entrance. 

 

4.   The total area of the first floor of a building shall not exceed 12,000 sq. ft. and the total gross floor 

area of a building shall not exceed 18,000 sq. ft.  The minimum and maximum floor area does not 

apply to churches. 

 48



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

JOSEPH E. BALL AND JEFF P. BALL – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

Signage 

 

1.  Sign copy on a monument sign shall not exceed 36 sq. ft.  

 

2.  No sign shall include changeable sign copy or electronic reader board signage.  

 

3.  An office building shall include wall signage. 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 

with the Office Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD/PO/I) 

Zoning classifications.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 

 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: Because this change of zoning represents a change to a non-residential 
designation, notification of Orange County Public Schools is not required. 
 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 

public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on April 10, 2015. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

May 12, 2015 - Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

May 20, 2015- City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

June 3, 2015 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

April 24, 2015 – Public Notice and Notification 

May 22, 2015 – Ordinance Heading Ad 

May 29, 2015 – ¼ Page w/Map Ad 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 

and compatible with the character of surrounding residential areas, and recommends approval of the change in 

zoning from A-1 (ZIP) to Planned Unit Development (PUD/PO/I) subject to the PUD developments standards 

for the property owned by Joseph E. Ball and Jeff P. Ball. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

49



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

JOSEPH E. BALL AND JEFF P. BALL – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

ZONING REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) A-1 Single-Family Residence 

East (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) 
 

PUD & R-1A Single-Family Residence, Vacant 

Land, Blue Lake 

South (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-1 Church 

West (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-1 Vacant Land, Lake Page 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The property has access to a Collector roadway (Piedmont Wekiwa Road). 

A church is a permissible use within the Planned Unit Development 
(PUD-PO/I) zoning category.  Future land use designations and zoning 
categories assigned to properties to the north, south, east, and west is 
predominantly residential and commercial.   

 
COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed PUD/PO/I zoning is compatible with policies set forth in the 

Comprehensive Plan.  
 
PO/I DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:    FAR:     0.30 (max.) 
     Open Space:    30 percent 
     Minimum Site Area:   10,000 sq. ft. 
     Minimum Lot Width:   85 ft. 
     Setbacks: Front:   25 ft. 
       Side:   10 ft. 
       Corner: 25 ft. 
       Rear:   10 ft. 
     Adjacent to Residential:  25 ft. 
 
BUFFERYARD 
REQUIREMENTS:  Areas adjacent to all road rights-of-way shall provide a minimum ten (10) 

foot landscaped bufferyard. Areas adjacent residential use shall provide a 
minimum six (6) foot masonry wall within a ten (10) foot landscaped 
bufferyard. 

 
ALLOWABLE 
USES:  Professional offices, medical or dental clinics and offices, establishments 

for the retail sale of pharmaceutical, medical and dental supplies, 
hospitals, museums, libraries, churches and educational facilities. 

  

50



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

JOSEPH E. BALL AND JEFF P. BALL – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

 
Joseph E. Ball and Jeff P. Ball 

6.49 +/- Acres 
Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  19 dwelling units 

Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 48,162 sq. ft. 
Proposed Zoning Change 

From: A-1 (ZIP) 
To: Planned Unit Development (PUD/PO/I) 

Parcel ID #: 13-21-28-0000-00-030 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Subject 

Property 

51



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

JOSEPH E. BALL AND JEFF P. BALL – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 
 

 

  

Subject 

Property 

52



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

JOSEPH E. BALL AND JEFF P. BALL – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 
 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 53



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

JOSEPH E. BALL AND JEFF P. BALL – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 

 

54



Page 55 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

5. CHANGE OF ZONING/MASTER PLAN – Avian Pointe – Apopka Clear Lake 

Investments, LLC – From “City” Planned Unit Development (PUD) (89.47 AC) 

and “County” A-2 (ZIP) (5.29 AC) to “City” Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-

3), for property located east of S.R. 429, south of Peterson Road, and north of 

Lust Road. (Parcel ID Nos. 07-21-28-0000-00-002 & 07-21-28-0000-00-023) 

  

55



CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING     DATE:  May 12, 2015 
          ANNEXATION     FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL     EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
          OTHER:         Vicinity Map 
          Adjacent Zoning Map 
          Adjacent Uses Map 
          Ex. A Master Plan 

Ex. B & B-1 Development Standards 
Ex. C Landscape Plan 
Ex. D Open Space\Rec Plan 
Ex. E Prototype Renderings 
Ex. F Flex Use Zone Uses 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: CHANGE OF ZONING/MASTER PLAN & PRELIMINARY 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN - AVIAN POINTE – APOPKA CLEAR LAKE 
INVESTMENTS, LLC 

     
PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 07-21-28-0000-00-002, 07-21-28-0000-00-015, & 07-21-28-0000-00-023 
 
Request:   CHANGE OF ZONING 
    FROM: “CITY” PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT AND 

“COUNTY” A-2 (ZIP) 
    TO:       “CITY” PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD/R-3) 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
OWNERS:   Apopka Clear Lake Investments, LLC & Lust Grant\WD Long Family Farms 
 
APPLICANT:   Apopka Clear Lake Investments LLC, c/o Ken Stoltenberg 
 
ENGINEER\PLANNER: Tannath Design, Inc.\Holly Swanson 
  
LOCATION: East of S.R. 429, south of Peterson Road, and north of Lust Road 
 
FLUM DESIGNATION: Residential Medium Density (90.7 ac) and Residential Low Density (30.3 ac) 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant Land 
 
CURRENT ZONING: Planned Unit Development (PUD) and County A-2 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Mixed Use Residential and Flex Use 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-3) 
 
TRACT SIZE:   125.27 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 

DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 626 Units 

    PROPOSED: 1,253 Units 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 

Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 

Commissioners (4)    HR Director    City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby   IT Director    Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Director   Police Chief  
  56



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

AVIAN POINTE – APOPKA CLEAR LAKE INVESTMENTS LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 
 

Parcel ID No. Date Annexed Ordinance No. Acres +/- 

07-21-28-0000-00-002 December 17, 1997 1129 89.47 

07-21-28-0000-00-015 August 16, 2000 1365 30.51 

07-21-28-0000-00-023 January 7, 2004 1621 5.29 

 

The applicant submitted an application to the City requesting a zoning category of Planned Unit Development 

for these same two parcels as well as the parcel abutting the northwest corner of the subject property.  This third 

parcel, owned by W.D. Long Family Farms et.al 

 

Development Profile: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:    The applicant has obtained an School Capacity Enhancement Agreement 

from Orange County Public Schools.  School concurrency will be required at the time of the Preliminary 

Development Plan application.  Location served by the following schools: Apopka Elementary; Wolf Lake 

Middle School; and Apopka High School. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: 
The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public hearing or advisory board.  The City 

properly notified Orange County on April 10, 2015. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
May 12, 2015 – Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 
May 20, 2015 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 1

st
 Reading 

June 3, 2015 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 2
nd

 Reading 

  

Total Residential Units 758 units  Min. Livable Area 

Single Family (70’ 
width; 8,400 sq.ft. 
min.) 

58 units 7.65% 1,700 sq. ft. 

Townhomes 216 units 28.50% 1,350 sq. ft. 
Apartments 484  units 63.85% 1-bedroom: 750 sq. ft. 

   2-bedroom: 900 sq. ft. 

   3-bedroom: 1,050 sq. ft. 

Flex Use  
Public\private school; 
ALF\Senior housing;  
100-bed boutique 
hotel 

6.09 ac  

 

Community Park 10.36 ac   
    

Open Space 30%   
    

Park & Recreation Each residential phase has its own park and recreation facility plan. 
    

Building Height    

    Apartments 3 stories; 45 ft.   

   Townhomes 3 stories; 45 ft.   

57



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

AVIAN POINTE – APOPKA CLEAR LAKE INVESTMENTS LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
April 24, 2015 – Public Notice and Notification 
May 22, 2015 – Ordinance Heading Ad 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of: 
 
1)  Change in Zoning from “City” Planned Unit Development and “County” A-2 (ZIP) to “City” Planned Unit 

Development (PUD/R-3) for approximately 125.27 +/- acres for the property owned by Apopka Clear Lake 
Investments LLC and Lust Grant, subject to the information and findings in the staff report and City 
approval of a Development Agreement for transportation and other infrastructure improvements; 

 
2)  Avian Pointe PUD Master Plan 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 

58



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

AVIAN POINTE – APOPKA CLEAR LAKE INVESTMENTS LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

ZONING REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) A-1; Mixed-EC 
Vacant Land (former Coca-Cola sprayfield 

property) 

East (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-1A; PUD 
Clear Lake Landing subdivision (near 

construction; Vacant Land/Nursery; Clear Lake 

South (City) Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du/ac) “County” A-1 (ZIP) Vacant Land 

West (County) “County” Rural (1 du/10 ac/Agricultural) “County” A-2 & A-1 
S.R. 429 Tollway; Vacant Land (Lake Apopka 

Restoration Area) west of the tollway 

 
LAND USE & TRAFFIC  
COMPATIBILITY: A transportation was prepared by the applicant’s transportation planning and 

engineering consultant, Luke Transportation.  The city engineer has accepted this 
study. 

 
 As a condition of the PUD zoning and the development agreement, the developer 

must construct a new road north to Peterson Road prior to completion of the 455 
residential unit or the flex use district or as set forth within the Development 
Agreement.  The Spine Road must also be completed according to the schedule 
set forth within the Development Agreement.  The Development Agreement will 
also address an HOA fee for maintenance of any on-street parking within public 
roads. 

 
 The Spine Road will be a public road, while all other internal streets will be 

private. 
 

The subject property will serve as a transition between S.R. 429 and single family 
residential development along Binion Road.  However, traffic volumes generated 
by the development densities proposed by Medium Density Residential will need 
additional roadway access besides Lust Road.  Thus, a second road to the north is 
necessary to accommodate development and vehicle trips generated by residential 
densities proposed at the subject site.  Therefore, the Development Review 
recommendation for Medium Density Residential is subject to the applicant 
demonstrating that a new northern road can be constructed from the northern 
project boundary to West Orange Avenue. 

 
COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-3) zoning is consistent with the 

City’s Residential Medium (0-10 du/ac) Future Land Use designation.   
Development Plans shall not exceed the intensity or density allowed for the 
adopted Future Land Use Designation. 

 
PUD  
RECOMMENDATIONS:  PUD development standards appear within the Master Plan sheets.  If a 

development standard is not addressed within the Master Plan, the City’s Land 
Development Code and Development Design Guidelines shall apply.  A 
preliminary development plan must be submitted to the City for each 
development phase. 

 
 
 59



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

AVIAN POINTE – APOPKA CLEAR LAKE INVESTMENTS LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 
COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed City PUD zoning is consistent with the City’s Residential Medium 

(0-10 du/ac) Future Land Use designation.  Development Plans shall not exceed 
the density and intensity allowed in the adopted Future Land Use Designation. 

 
R-3 PERMISSIBLE  
USES: Any use permitted in the R-3 zoning district; Multifamily dwellings, including, 

but not limited to, single family, triplex, quadruplex, townhouses, condominium, 
and apartment complexes.   

60



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

AVIAN POINTE – APOPKA CLEAR LAKE INVESTMENTS LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

 
 

Avian Pointe - Apopka Clear Lake Investments LLC 
Existing Maximum Allowable Development: 665 SFR 

Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 58 SFR; 218 Townhomes; and 484 Apartment Units 
Proposed Change of Zoning 

From: “City” Planned Unit Development and “County” A-2 (ZIP) 
To: “City” Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-3) 

Parcel ID #s: 07-21-28-0000-00-002, 07-21-28-0000-00-015, 07-21-28-0000-00-023 
125.27 +/- Acres Combined 

 
 
 

VICINITY MAP  

 

  

Subject
Property 

61



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

AVIAN POINTE – APOPKA CLEAR LAKE INVESTMENTS LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 
 

  

Subject 
Property 

62



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

AVIAN POINTE – APOPKA CLEAR LAKE INVESTMENTS LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 
 

 

ADJACENT USES 
 

 

63



  
EXHIBIT “A” 

64



 

65



Avian Pointe Development Standards & Guidelines 

 Refer to developer agreement for additional project information regarding development standards & 
guidelines. 

 
COMMUNITY DESIGN 
 
1. Northern & southern entrance feature designs and  landscaping will be provided at the preliminary 

development plan. 
 
2. Postal Service: 
 

a.    Parcel A:  Service shall be via individual mailboxes located in the landscape strip abutting the street.  If any 
on-street parking is proposed within the Spine Road for Parcel A, a mail kiosk may be required at the time 
of the preliminary development plan. 

 
b. Mailboxes shall be uniform in design & color and overseen by the homeowner's association. 
 
c.   Parcels B-1, B-2 & B3 shall have USPS/ADA  approved mail kiosks as shown on the enlarged master plan.  

These kiosks shall be located on paved areas with sufficient maneuvering clearances and  proper grading 
to accommodate both mail carriers and persons with disabilities. A letter from the Apopka USPS  shall be 
required prior to approval of the preliminary development plan. 

 
3. Public and private roads are called out on the enlarged master plan sheets. A list of potential street names is 

included in this document set. Final street names shall be submitted with the preliminary development plan. 
 
4. Fenced dog parks:  two (2) fenced dog parks are noted on the Master Plan.  One is located at the northwest 

corner of the apartment complex parcel. The second is called out within the B parcel P.O.A. area adjacent to 
the northwest corner of clear lake commons  Avian Point with  no adjacent residential lots within that 
development.  Delineated dog park plans shall be submitted with the preliminary development plan. 

 
5. A list of potential 'village' or neighborhood names shall be included with the preliminary site plan. Each village 

will be named 'xxxx' at Avian Pointe. 
 
6. Community signage will be uniform, developed, submitted and approved per City of Apopka signage 

standards at the preliminary site\subdivision plan. 
 
7. Community street lighting will be uniform, selected, submitted and approved per City of Apopka street 

lighting standards at the preliminary site plan.  Street light and pedestrian light poles shall be of a decorative 
type consistent with City’s Development Design Guidelines. 

 
PARKING 
 
1. Parking standards set forth within Sheet ZA.02 for parking summary table, Master Plan. 
 
2. On street parallel parking spaces shall be a minimum of 9' wide x 22' in length. 
 
3. Head-in, 90° standard parking spaces shall be a minimum of 9' wide x 18' in length.  
 
4. Head-in 90° standard parking spaces at Parcel B-2 parking aisles may be decreased to 9' wide x 16' deep to 

increase landscaped median per city of Apopka LDC. 
 
5. Head-in 90° ADA parking spaces shall be a minimum of 12' wide x 19' long & meet both Florida building code 

and Federal ADA standards.  A 5' wide accessible aisle shall be required at each ADA parking space. Each space 
shall be marked with the universal ADA symbol and be provided with appropriate signage in accordance with 
code requirements. 

 
6. Compact spaces are not allowed. 
 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 

66



7. Garage setbacks: 
 
 Parcel A:  30' minimum clear driveway depth to right of way sidewalk 
 
 Parcels B-1 & B-3:  20' min. clear driveway depth to right of way sidewalk. 
 
8. Front entry garage minimum setback for single family homes is 30' per development design guidelines. 
 
9. Garage setback for townhomes must be sufficient to accommodate a 20' long vehicle without extending over 

a sidewalk or street or alley. 
 
10.  Townhome driveways shall be separated by a landscape area to separate vehicles & define property 

boundaries. 
 
BUILDING DESIGN/ARCHITECTURE 
 
1. Townhomes :  entrance to each unit must access a public sidewalk.  Refer to landscape plans for proposed 

sidewalk locations. 
 
2. Townhomes abutting a street shall have their main entry from that street. This applies to perimeter units on 

Parcels B-1 and B-3. Internal block units shall have their primary entrance off of the common greenspace with 
rear access from internal streets or alleys. Refer to enlarged landscape plans for graphic information. 

 
3. Refer to parking notes above for single family home front entry garage requirements. 
 
4. Townhouse and apartment unit preliminary layouts and dimensions used for this submittal shall be provided 

as supplemental documents at time of public hearing. 
 
4. Standards for apartment mix are listed in tabular format on sheet za.02. 
 
5. Townhomes shall have a minimum of one enclosed garage space.   A minimum of one of the two required 

parking spaces occur within an enclosed garage space. 
 
6. Single family residences shall have a minimum of two (2) enclosed garage spaces. 
 
RECREATION 
 
1.   Parcel A: the edge of Heninger Lake shall be left undisturbed and vegetated. See notes on Sheet ZA.02 and 

ZA.03   
 
2. Community Park (Parcel B-4):  Community park shall be available to residents of all villages (A to B-6) to use, 

including any guest and/or residents at any hotel or living facility within Parcel B-5.  Refer to Sheet enlarged 
plans for additional information (Sheet ZA.07 and ZA.08). 

 
3.    Development Agreement will include schedule for completion of  parks and recreation facilities.  
 
LANDSCAPE & BUFFER 
 
1. A 6' high precast concrete wall with ledgestone finish shall be placed within the landscape buffer next to the 

Clear Lake landings subdivision.  All perimeter property separation walls to match. 
 
2. Final recreation plan for each residential village shall be provided at the preliminary development plan. 
 
FIRE DEPARTMENT NOTES 
 
1. All roadways, water line infrastructure and fire hydrants shall be in place before building construction may 

begin. 
 
2.  Fire hydrants must be within 500 feet of each home. 67



 
3.  Fire hydrant shall be marked with a blue road reflector. 
 
4.  Fire lanes shall be provided for the multi residential buildings. 
 
5. All multi residential town homes or apartments must be equipped with fire sprinkler systems, and fire alarm 

systems meeting Florida fire prevention code. 
 
6. Fire department connections (FDC ) for sprinkler systems must be remote from the buildings with fire lanes. 
 
7. If the development is gated, the gate shall be equipped with an opti-com type signaling device that is 

compatible with City of Apopka emergency vehicles. It must also be equipped with a yelp siren activation and 
gate code requested by the Fire Department. 

 
8.   Connector road to the north all the way to W. Orange Avenue shall meet City of Apopka standards to allow 

safe travel for fire apparatus. 
 
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT NOTES 
 
1. Roads, driveways & roundabouts shall follow FDOT standards. 
 
2. Utilities shall be coordinated with and provided by the city of Apopka. 
 
3. Sanitation service shall be coordinated with and provided by the City of Apopka. 
 
4. Single family and townhome sanitation service shall be via individual unit curbside waste bins per city 

schedule. 
 
5. Apartment sanitation service shall be via roll-off bins located within an enclosed compactor bay on site.  

Apartment maintenance staff shall be responsible for transportation of trash from the apartment buildings to 
the compactors and coordinating pick up with the city sanitation department. 

 
6. No trees or shrubs shall be planted within the road right of ways with contain city-maintained 
 potable water, reclaimed water, stormwater or sewer mains.  
 
7. Landscape and irrigation design shall be in accordance with the City of Apopka  Ordinance 2069, adopted  

May 21, 2008 which establishes waterwise landscape and irrigation standards. 
 
BUILDING DESIGN/ARCHITECTURE 
 
1. Village structures shall be complimentary to but distinct from adjacent villages. 
 
2. Building facades shall be varied in depth with multiple pitched roof heights to provide visual interest. Flat 

and/or mansard roofs shall not be permitted. 
 
3. Facade materials shall be varied and may consist of stucco, horizontal siding, stone and/or brick veneer.   
 
4. Color palettes shall be complimentary to but distinct from adjacent villages.  Field colors and trim shall be 

distinct from one another. 
 
5. Residential units shall have a useable front porch accessible from the sidewalk. Upper units at the apartments 

shall also have porches and/or useable outdoor seating areas located along the upper floor verandas. 
 
6. A community clubhouse and resort style pool shall be located in the single family and townhome villages. 
 
7. Two community clubhouses and resort style pools shall be located in the apartment village. 
 
8. Community clubhouses shall be equipped with restrooms, communal kitchens (indoor and/or outdoor), 

seating areas and exercise areas. 68



 
9. Community clubhouses shall be designed to accommodate persons with disabilities as required by the Florida 

building code and ADA, current enforced editions. 
 
10. Access to community clubhouses shall be restricted to village residents and their guests. 
 
BUILDING SETBACKS 
 
1. SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCES 
  FRONT YARD:    25' MINIMUM 
  SIDE YARD:    7.5' MINIMUM 
  REAR YARD:    20' MINIMUM 
  FRONT-FACING GARAGE:  30' MINIMUM 
 
  NOTES:  
 

· Two story residences shall be set back an additional 2.5' from the side yard property lines. 
 

· Front porches may encroach into the front yard setback no more than 5'.  
 
2. TOWNHOMES 
  

Front yard: 15' minimum, 17' to 20' shown on plan to public sidewalk where facing street 
 
Front yard: 5' minimum to public sidewalk where facing central greenbelt  face of bldg to face 

of bldg: 60' minimum where facing central greenbelt side yard between bldgs:20' 
minimum 

 
Garage driveway:   20' minimum to public sidewalk\edge of right of way 
 
NOTES: 
 
· Townhomes abutting the single family residential village shall be setback a minimum of 30' 

from the property line separating the two villages.  
 
· A 6' high precast concrete wall with stone veneer shall be located along that property line. 

Refer to master plan & landscape plan for location 
 
· Front porches at townhomes may not encroach into the front yard setback. 

  
3. APARTMENTS 
 

Front yard: 12' MINIMUM TO PUBLIC SIDEWALK WHERE FACING STREET 
 
Side yard: NOT APPLICABLE 
 
Face of bldg to face of bldg:   60' MINIMUM, 70' SHOWN ON PLAN WHERE FACING central 

greenspace 
  NOTES: 
 

·   Ground floor apartment units facing the street shall have usable front porches and entrances 
accessible from the public sidewalk.  

 
· Units facing the central greenspace shall have usable porches accessible from common area 

walkways. 
·  
· Front porches at apartments may not encroach into the front yard setback or central 

greenspace setback. 
  69



LOT DIMENSIONS 
 
1. SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCES 
 

INTERIOR LOTS: 70' X 120'  (LIMITED TO 10% OF TOTAL LOTS) 
 75' X 110' 
 80' X 100' 
 
CORNER LOTS: 75' X 110' MINIMUM 

         
  NOTES:  

 
· Lot widths at internal blocks vary but must maintain minimum standards listed above. 
 
· Lot configuration diagrams are located on Sheet ZA.12 

 
2. TOWNHOMES 
 

INTERIOR LOTS: 20' X 71' MINIMUM 
END LOTS: 20'-4" WIDE X 71' DEEP TO ACCOMODATE END  

 
WALL THICKNESS. 
 
  NOTES: 
 

· Common areas abutting the townhome lots shall be the responsibility of and maintained by 
the Village H.O.A.  

 
UNIT SIZES 
 
1. SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCES 
 
  1,700 minimum sf livable area 
 
  2 enclosed parking spaces 
 
2. TOWNHOMES 
 
  1,350 minimum sf livable area 
 
  1 enclosed parking space 
 
3. APARTMENTS 
 

1 BR UNIT: 750 minimum SF livable area 
 
2 BR UNIT: 900 minimum SF livable area 
 
3 BR UNIT: 1,050 minimum SF livable area 

   
  NOTES: 
 

· See Sheet ZA.02 for parking table 
 
· A list of luxury apartment features is included in the developer agreement. 

 
ADDITIONAL NOTES 
 
1. All residential units shall comply with fair housing act accessibility standards. 
 
2. A minimum of 5% of the apartment units shall be designed to comply with ADA standards. 70



 
3. All single family and townhome units shall have a fair housing act compliant bath or 1/2 bath located on the 

ground floor of the unit.  
 
4. All residential units shall laundry facilities located within the livable area. 
 
5. Bicycles and or personal items other than outdoor furnishings and plants shall not be stored on porches. 

Bicycle racks shall be provided at community clubhouses, recreation areas and each apartment block. 
 
6. Single family waste bins shall be stored either within each unit's garage or behind an opaque screen wall or 

fence located within the sideyard setback 
 
7. Townhome waste bins shall be stored within each unit's garage or behind an opaque screen wall or fence 

located within the rear yard setback. 
 
8. Apartment buildings shall have common trash rooms located within each building. Property management 

shall be responsible for transporting trash from each building to the compactor enclosure shown on the plans. 
 
COMMUNITY PARK GUIDELINES 
 
1. Park facilities shall meet ADA accessibility requirements. 
 
2. Restrooms shall be provided for park users. 
 
3. On-street parking is provided for park users. Additional parking pending. Refer to developer agreement for 

additional information. 
 
4. Bicycle racks shall be provided. Number and location(s) to be determined at preliminary development plan. 
 
5. Drinking fountains shall be provided. Number and locations to be determined at preliminary development 

plan. 
 
6. Recreation facilities shown on plans are conceptual final facilities to be determined at preliminary 

development plan. 
 
7. All development residents shall have shared-use access to the community park including flex zone Parcel B-5. 
 
FLEX ZONE PARCEL B-5 
 
1. 3 OPTIONS PROVIDED: 
 

OPTION 1: 100 ROOM BOUTIQUE HOTEL 
OPTION 2: SENIOR HOUSING FACILITY 
OPTION 3: SCHOOL/DAYCARE FACILITY 

 
2. Development standards to follow land development code. 
 
3. Refer to adopting PUD zoning ordinance for additional information. 
 
PROPOSED VILLAGE NAMES  
 

PARCEL A The Lakes at Avian Pointe 
PARCEL B-1 North Mews at Avian Pointe 
PARCEL B-2 The Commons at Avian Pointe 
PARCEL B-3 South Mews at Avian Pointe 
PARCEL B-4 Community park to be determined and submitted with preliminary development 

plan 
PARCEL B-5 FLEX ZONE To be determined and submitted with preliminary development plan 
 
 

71



PROPOSED STREET NAMES (Information Only) 

 

Street Names Available Alternate Parcel 

  

Y N Blvd Drive Street Avenue Road Lane Court Place Way 

 

  
  

Y/N Y/N Y/N Y/N Y/N Y/N Y/N Y/N Y/N 

 

  
           

 
Avian Pointe Drive ● 

 
Y 

 
Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 

N/S 
ROW 

              Clear Water Drive ● 
 

Y 
 

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y A 

              Bass Road 
 

● Y N N Y 
 

Y Y Y Y A 

              Bluegill Way ● 
 

Y Y N Y Y Y Y Y 
 

A 

              Avian Way ● 
 

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 
 

B 

              Avian Terrace ● 
 

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 
 

B 

              Gallinule Drive ● 
 

Y 
 

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y B-1 

              Aythya Way ● 
 

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 
 

B-1 

              Anhingus Court ● 
 

Y Y Y Y Y Y 
 

Y Y B-1 

              Harrier Court ● 
 

Y N Y Y Y Y 
 

Y Y B-1 

              Blue Heron Way ● 
 

Y N Y Y Y Y Y Y 
 

B-2 

              East Commons Drive ● 
 

Y 
 

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y B-2 

              West Commons Drive ● 
 

Y 
 

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y B-2 

                           

             

Egret Drive ● 
 

Y 
 

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y B-3 

              Peregrine Court 
 

● Y Y Y N Y Y 
 

Y Y B-3 

              Ardea Court ● 
 

Y Y Y Y Y Y 
 

Y Y B-3 

              All Street Names Deemed Available Per Orange County Master Street Address Guide As Of May 29, 2014 

 
Orange County EMS Letter Pending 

 NOTES 
 
1.   Village names listed above are preliminary & subject to change pending preliminary site plan submittal. 
2. Street names are preliminary & subject to change pending orange county availability and preliminary site plan submittal. 

NOTE: 
 velopment standards to follow land development code. 
 efer to developer agreement for additional project information regarding development standards & guidelines. 72



 

 EXHIBIT “B-1” 

73



  

EXHIBIT “C” 

74



 

 

75



  

EXHIBIT “D” 

76



 

77



  

EXHIBIT “E” 

78



  

79



 

80



FLEX SPACE PERMITTED USES – PARCEL B-5 

Flex Space Permitted Uses.  The following land uses are permissible uses within the Flex space area 

(Phase B-5):  [a.  Boutique Hotel.  The Hotel shall not exceed 100 rooms and all rooms must have entry 

only  through the interior of the hotel building.  A restaurant is allowed at the hotel but must be interior 

to the hotel or connected by a covered walkway.  Restaurant facilities must be managed or leased by 

the hotel owner.  The boutique hotel shall demonstrate character and attributes common to the 

definition of such hotels and shall be furnished in a themed, stylish and/or aspirational manner. 

b. School.  A public or private school serving school age children from grades kindergarten (including 

pre-school) to 12th grade.   In the event that the Flex Space Phase is developed as a school use, the 

Master Association shall enter into a shared use agreement with the owner of the school property to 

enable the school to utilize a portion of the Recreational Area Phase during normal school hours. Such 

use agreement shall set forth an obligation of the owner of the school property to participate in the 

maintenance costs of the Shared Recreational Area Phase (Parcel B-4)  on a fair share basis to be agreed 

upon between the parties.  The shared use agreement shall ensure that residents of the Avian Pointe 

community remain to have reasonable use of the Shared Recreation Area.   

c. Day care, adult or child. 

d. Assisted Living Facility or Senior Housing. 

e.  Residential. The City and the Developer agree that in the event nonresidential development does not 

occur on the Flex Space area, Developer shall be permitted to convert the flex space to develop up to a 

maximum of sixty (60) townhome units on the Flex Space area to the extent and limited to a maximum 

residential density of ten (10) units per acres for the entire area of the Avian Pointe Master Plan 

assigned a Residential Medium Density Future Land Use Designation and subject to compliance with all 

school concurrency requirements and the City’s Land Development Code.  Conversion of the Flex Space 

area to residential townhomes shall not occur until after 650 residential units have been constructed 

within Avian Pointe or five (5) years from the completion of the Spine Road, whichever occurs first.  

Conversion may include residential apartments above first-floor professional or business office uses 

consistent with Section 9(f) below.  Residential buildings within parcel B-5 nearest the Spine Road or the 

northern private road shall be have the front facade oriented to the street with the primary entrance 

connected to the street sidewalk and to the perimeter of the Parcel.  Parking shall be behind residential 

buildings screened from S.R. 429 or the PUD roads.  Residential buildings nearest the Spine Road shall be 

limited to two stories and a height of thirty-five (35) feet.    

f. Vertical Mixed Use Buildings. Professional or business office on the first floor and apartments on the 

upper floors.  A maximum of sixty (60) apartment units are allowed.  A professional or business office 

unit shall not exceed 2,500 square feet. 

G.  Any residential development within the Flex Use Area must satisfy any applicable school concurrency 

requirements prior to submittal of a preliminary or final development plan. 

81



Page 82 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

6. CHANGE OF ZONING/MASTER PLAN & PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT 

PLAN – Marden Ridge – owned by Emerson Point Associates, LLLP; Applicant 

MMI Development, Inc., c/o Michael E. Wright, Esq.; Engineer GAI Consultants, 

Inc., c/o Anthony Call, P.E. – from R-3 (Residential) and C-1 (Commercial) to 

Planned Unit Development (R-3/C-1) for property located Between S.R. 451 and 

Marden Road, south of Ocoee Apopka Road, and north of the Apopka 

Expressway. (Parcel ID No. 17-21-28-0000-00-029) 

  

82



CITY OF APOPKA 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  May 12, 2015 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
          OTHER:          Support Maps 
           Master Plan Sheet  
           Dev. Design Standards 
           Landscape Plan 
           Architectural Renderings 
           Color Photo 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: CHANGE OF ZONING - MASTER PLAN\PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN – MARDEN RIDGE APARTMENTS, PHASE 1B OWNED BY MMI 
DEVELOPMENT, INC. 

     
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 17-21-28-0000-00-029 
 

Request:   CHANGE OF ZONING 
    FROM: R-3 (RESIDENTIAL) & C-1 (COMMERCIAL) 

TO: PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD/R-3/C-1)  
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
OWNERS:   Emerson Point Associates, LLLP 
 
APPLICANT:   MMI Development, Inc., c/o Michael E. Wright, Esq. 
 
ENGINEER:   GAI Consultants, Inc., c/o Anthony Call, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: Between S.R. 451 and Marden Road, south of Ocoee Apopka Road, and north of 

the Apopka Expressway (S.R. 414) 
 
EXISTING USE:  Planted Pine 
 
FLUM DESIGNATION:  Commercial (6.43 acres); Residential High Density (0 – 15 un\ac) (18.05 ac) 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  R-3 and C-1 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Apartment (272 units/5 buildings- density 15 du/ac) and Retail Commercial 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-3/C-1) 
 
TRACT SIZE:   Apartments: 18.05 +/- Acres 
    Retail Commercial: 6.43 +/- Acres 
    42.17 +/-  Total Acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 536 Res. Units (35.74 ac) 
    PROPOSED: 272 Res. Units (Phase 1B) on 18. 05 ac  
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer      Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director    Police Chief   

G:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Rezoning\2015\Marden Ridge ZON PUD PC 05-12-15 

83



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

MARDEN RIDGE APARTMENTS PHASE 1B– CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:   The Marden Ridge Master Plan contains a total of 42.17 acres, of which 

35.74 acres is currently assigned an R-3 zoning category and 6.43 acres is assigned a C-1 commercial zoning 

category.  The developer proposes to construct 272 residential apartments (15 du/ac) on 18.05 acres of the 35.74 

residential acres.  Development of the remaining 17.69 acres of residential land will occur at a later date through 

a separate Preliminary Development Plan application, as will development of the 6.43 acres of land assigned the 

C-1 commercial zoning category.   An outline of the proposed development profile for the Phase 1B apartments 

is as follows: 

 

Apartment Units: 272 

Units by # of Bedrooms  

 One Bedroom: 56 

 Two Bedroom: 176 

 Three Bedroom: 40 

  

Maximum Building Height: 40 feet 

Maximum No. of Stories: 4 

  

Parking Spaces  

 Standard Spaces: 522 

 A.D.A. Accessible Spaces: 11 

 Total Spaces: 544 

  

Park and Open Space  

 Open Space: 30.1 % 

 Park Area: 2.98 ac 

 

Development Standards are provided in the exhibits.   Sheet C2.10 of the Master Site Plan shall be consistent 

with the Exhibit. 

 

The subject property was annexed into the City of Apopka on September 5, 2007, through the adoption of 

Ordinance No. 1975.  The proposed Change of Zoning is being requested by the property owner.   Phase 1B of 

the Marden Ridge Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan comprises the apartment complex (18.05 acres); 

Phase 1A is the mass grading plan.  The commercial phase and the northern residential phase will be approved 

under a separate preliminary development plan.  An amendment to the Master Site Plan for the future residential 

and commercial will not be necessary. 

 

A request to assign a zoning designation of PUD/R-1/C-1 is compatible with the designations assigned to 

abutting properties.  The zoning application covers approximately 42.17 +/- acres. The property owner intends 

to use the site for apartments (272 units in 5 buildings) and retail commercial.  

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 

adequate public facilities exist to support this zoning change (see attached Zoning Report). 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 

with the Residential High Land Use designation and the City’s proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-

3/C-1) Zoning classifications.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use 

policies. 

 
 

84



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

MARDEN RIDGE APARTMENTS PHASE 1B– CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  Staff has notified Orange County Public Schools (OCPS) of the proposed 
Zoning Map Amendment. Prior to submittal of a final development plan application, the applicant must obtain a 
school capacity enhancement or mitigation agreement from OCPS.  Located served by the following schools:  
Wheatley Elementary School, Wolf Lake Middle School, and Apopka High School. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County before any public 
hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on April 22, 2015. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

May 12, 2015 - Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

May 20, 2015- City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

June 3, 2015 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

April 24, 2015 – Public Notice and Notification 

May 22, 2015 – Ordinance Heading Ad 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 

and recommends approval of the change in zoning from R-3 and C-1 to Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-

3/C-1) and approval of the Marden Ridge Apartments – Phase 1B Master Site Plan/Preliminary Development 

Plan subject to the information and comments in the staff report for the property owned by Emerson Point 

Associates, LLLP. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

85



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

MARDEN RIDGE APARTMENTS PHASE 1B– CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

ZONING REPORT 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Commercial  C-1 Vacant Land; Ocoee Apopka Road 

East (City) Residential Medium (0-10 du\ac) R-3 Vacant Land 

East (County) Low-Medium Density (0-10 un\ac) R-2, R-3 Marden Garden apartments, Vacant 

Land 

South (City) Mixed Use Mixed-EC S.R. 414\vacant land\Emerson Park 

West (City) Industrial\Residential Medium Density R-3 

I-1 

S.R. 451\Warehouse\vacant land 

 

LAND USE & TRAFFIC 

COMPATIBILITY: The property has access to a local roadway (Marden Road) and Ocoee Apopka 

Road (CR 437A).  The subject property is already assigned a Future Land Use 

Designation of Commercial and Residential High Density, and C-1 commercial 

and R-3 residential.  The proposed PUD zoning is requested to allow four story 

apartments with a maximum height of sixty (60) feet. 

COMPREHENSIVE  

PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-3) zoning is consistent with the 

City’s Residential Medium (0-10 du/ac) Future Land Use designation.   

Development Plans shall not exceed the intensity or density allowed for the 

adopted Future Land Use Designation. 

 

PUD  

RECOMMENDATIONS: The PUD recommendation is to assign a zoning classification of Planned Unit 

Development (PUD) for the described subject property with the following Master 

Plan provisions is subject to the following zoning provisions: 

 

 

The PUD recommendation is to assign a zoning classification of Planned Unit 

Development (PUD) for the described subject property with the following Master 

Plan provisions is subject to the following zoning provisions: 

 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be:   

 

1. The Commercial area (future phase; 6.43 acres) delineated within the 

Marden Ridge Apartments-Phase 1B Master Plan/Preliminary 

Development Plan shall comply with the C-1 Commercial zoning 

standards.  Outdoor storage and display shall not be allowed. 

 

2. Apartment residential area within Phase 1B and the northern future 

residential phase, as delineated within the Marden Ridge Apartments 

Master Plan (Sheet C.3) shall comply with the R-3 Residential zoning 

district uses and development standards set forth in the Land Development 

Code unless otherwise provided in Section B below.  The R-3 zoning 

86



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

MARDEN RIDGE APARTMENTS PHASE 1B– CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

standards shall apply to the development of the subject property unless as 

otherwise addressed within the PUD ordinance. 

 

B.  Development Standards: 

 

1.   Maximum height of residential apartment buildings is sixty (60) feet. 

 

2. Development standards for the apartment buildings within Phase 1b shall 

comply with Marden Ridge Apartments Phase 1B Master Plan\Preliminary 

Development Plan and the Development Standards set forth in C2.10. 

 

3. Development and site design shall comply with the Land Development 

Code unless otherwise addressed within Marden Ridge Apartments Phase 

1B Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan. 

 

4. Development within the Future Commercial Phase and the northern Resi-

dential Phase shall be processed as a Preliminary Development Plan 

and\or a Final Development Plan.   

C. The Marden Ridge Apartments Master Plan Site\Preliminary Development 

Plan 1B is hereby approved and is part of the PUD zoning ordinance. 

 

R-3 PERMISSIBLE  

USES: Any use permitted in the R-3 zoning district; Multifamily dwellings, including, 

but not limited to, single family, triplex, quadruplex, townhouses, condominium, 

and apartment complexes.  

 

C-1 DISTRICT  

REQUIREMENTS: Minimum Site Area:  10,000 sq. ft. 

   Minimum Lot Width:  100 ft. 

   Front Setback:   10 ft. 

   Side Setback:   10 ft. 

   Rear Setback:   30 ft. 

   Corner Setback:  25 ft. 

   FAR:    0.25 

 

BUFFERYARD  

REQUIREMENTS:   Areas adjacent to all road rights of way shall provide a minimum ten (10) foot 

landscaped bufferyard.  Areas adjacent to agricultural and residential uses or 

districts shall provide a minimum six foot-high masonry wall within a ten foot 

landscaped bufferyard. Areas adjacent to non-residential uses or districts shall 

provide a minimum five (5) foot landscaped bufferyard. 

  

87



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

MARDEN RIDGE APARTMENTS PHASE 1B– CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

C-1 PERMISSABLE 

USES: Any nonresidential permitted use in the PO/I or CN districts. Retail 

establishments. Banks, savings and loan and other financial institutions. Bowling 

alleys, skating rinks, billiard parlors and similar amusement centers, provided 

such activities and facilities are enclosed within a sound-proof building. Churches 

and schools. Day nurseries, kindergartens and other child care centers. Drive-in 

restaurants, with property lines no closer than 200 feet from any residential 

districts or uses. Florist shops, the products of which are displayed and sold 

wholly within an enclosed building.  Hotels, motels, bed and breakfast facilities. 

Personal service establishments such as barbershops, beauty parlors, professional 

and other offices, parking garages and lots, laundry and dry cleaning pickup 

station, self-service coin-operated laundry and dry cleaning establishments, shoe 

shine and repair, tailoring, travel services, watch and clock repair and locksmiths, 

etc. Post offices. Restaurants. Theaters, enclosed in structures. Clubs and lodges. 

Funeral parlors, when the sole use of the facility shall be for funeral rites. Animal 

clinics for the treatment of small animals, excluding farm animals, but including 

those animals no larger than a dog, commonly kept as pets in a residence, 

provided the care, treatment or housing of such animals shall not be allowed on 

the outside. Other uses which are similar and compatible to the uses permitted 

herein which adhere to the intent of the district and which are not prohibited as 

specified in this code. Use determination shall be based upon the community 

development director's recommendation.  
 
 

  

88



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

MARDEN RIDGE APARTMENTS PHASE 1B– CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

Marden Ridge Apartments 
MMI Development, Inc. c/o Michael E. Wright, Esq. 
Increase in building height from 35 feet to 58 feet. 

Retail Commercial: 6.43 +/- Acres 
Apartments: 18.05 +/- Acres (272 Units) 

42.17 +/-  Total Acres 
Parcel ID #: 17-21-28-0000-00-029 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 
 

  

Subject 

Property 

Subject 
Property 

89



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

MARDEN RIDGE APARTMENTS PHASE 1B– CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 
 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 
 

 

  

Subject 
Property 

90



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

MARDEN RIDGE APARTMENTS PHASE 1B– CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 
 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

91



92



M
A

R
D

E
N

 R
ID

G
E

 A
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
S

 -
 P

H
A

S
E

 1
B

A
P

O
P

K
A

, 
F

L
O

R
ID

A

93



M
A

R
D

E
N

 R
ID

G
E

 A
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
S

 -
 P

H
A

S
E

 1
B

A
P

O
P

K
A

, 
F

L
O

R
ID

A

94



M
A

R
D

E
N

 R
ID

G
E

 A
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
S

 -
 P

H
A

S
E

 1
B

A
P

O
P

K
A

, 
F

L
O

R
ID

A

95



M
A

R
D

E
N

 R
ID

G
E

 A
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
S

 -
 P

H
A

S
E

 1
B

A
P

O
P

K
A

, 
F

L
O

R
ID

A

96



M
A

R
D

E
N

 R
ID

G
E

 A
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
S

 -
 P

H
A

S
E

 1
B

A
P

O
P

K
A

, 
F

L
O

R
ID

A

97



MARDEN RIDGE APARTMENTS PHASE 1B MASTER PLAN 
 
A.  DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS (SHEET C2.10)  
 
SIGNAGE:  All signage shall comply with City of Apopka codes, and FDOT MUTCD. 
 
LIGHTING:  Lighting shall comply with City of Apopka codes.  Illumination plan required at final development plan. 
 
STORMWATER:  Stormwater management system will be designed to comply with City of Apopka code and the 
requirements of the St. Johns River Water Management District and approved with the final development plans. 
 
WATER AND SEWER:  Sewer and water to be provided via private onsite system connected to the City of Apopka utilities 
water main, sewer force main and reclaim water main within the Marden Road right of way. Lift station will be owned 
and maintained by the City of Apopka. The lift station tract will be deeded to the city. 
 
RECREATIONAL FACILITIES: 
 

1. All recreational facilities will be owned and maintained by the owner of the apartment complex owner. 
 

2. Lock boxes for emergency access shall be provided for pool building/patio and office building. 
 

3. Final details for court type and layout, tot lot, picnic and other equipment will be provided for city approval on 
the final development plans. 
 

4. Final pool sizing and design shall be provided at the time of final development plans.  
 

5. A letter from the Fl. Dept. of Health (or appropriate agency) must be submitted to community development 
department at time of final dev. plan to affirm the minimum size of the pool. 
 

6. Recreational program to include, at minimum,  the following:  bark park, tot lot, picnic and gathering areas, BBQ 
locations and other equipment.   Final recreation equipment details to beill be provided with Final Development 
Plan. 

 
ACCESS & TRAFFIC GENERATION:  Access to the public road system will be via Marden Road. The maximum projected 
traffic generation for this project is 287 pm peak hour trips per the site trip generation manual, 7th edition, for land use 
220 - apartments. 
 
PEDESTRIAN ACCESS:  Sidewalks to be 5' wide unless otherwise noted on plans. 
 
AMENITIES:  To assure that quality residential development is constructed, the following amenities are proposed and 
will be included with the project: 
 

1. Clubhouse will include wireless high speed internet, business center, fitness center, kitchen area with sings, 
refrigerator and microwave and resort-style swimming pool with outdoor fireplace.  

 
2. Apartment units will include energy-efficient appliances, full size washer and dryer available in 2 and 3 bedroom 

apartments, full or stacked washer and dryer available in 1 bedroom apartments, walk-in closets, bicycle trails, 
bicycle racks, bicycle and storage areas, granite counter tops, 9-foot ceilings.  No coin laundry center allowed. 

 
3. Security surveillance to be provided at Final Development Plan at entrance way per City of Apopka. 

 
PARKING AREAS:  In accordance with City of Apopka regulations, 20% of parking spaces shall have pervious parking 
surface at time of final development plan. 98



 
DEVELOPMENT DESIGN STANDARD: 
 

1. Architectural design and color of multi-family buildings will be internally compatible.   
 

2. All service and storage areas must be screened from public view. 
 

3. All equipment (including roof top) and utility boxes must be fully screened (including the back of the building). 
 
MONUMENT SIGN:   At time of final development, monument and sign easement shall be dedicated to the City of 
Apopka. entry feature detail will be provided with final development plan. 
 
MULTI-USE TRAIL:  Maintenance authority and ownership of multi-use trail to be determined at the Final Development 
Plan. 
 
LAND AREA FOR CONSTRUCTION:   
6.64 acres commercial (clear, mass grade, vertical constr. - including 0.21 acres ROW dedication) 
35.53  acres of r-3 (clear, mass grade, construct joint use pond, vertical construction - including 1.04 acres for row 
dedication) 
 
Note that existing Marden Road right of way is 60'. Future right of way dedication is shown in this set of plans and will 
include 20' on either side making the future right of way 100'.  The traffic study shows a proposed future row dedication 
of 25' which is incorrect. 
 
PHASING INTENT OF THE PROJECT: 
The project will be constructed in multiple phases, consisting of Phase 1A - mass grading plans and Phase 1B, the 
preliminary development plans herein.  Anything beyond phase 1B site development will be identified as future 
development.  Mass Grading plans must be approved by the City. 
 
Construction dates are to be determined, due to the construction schedule of the SR 414 interchange. The apartments 
are to be completed within 90 days of interchange construction.   
Future construction will follow at a later date. 
 
APARTMENT UNIT MIX: 
 

1. One bedroom units -- maximum  20% of the total residential apartments 
 
2. Three bedroom units – minimum 10 % of the total residential apartments 
 
3. Proposed apartment unit mix is provided in the table below but may be revised if unit mix complies with the 

one- and three-bedroom standards above. 
 

PROPOSED UNITS:  MULTIFAMILY RESIDENTIAL APARTMENTS 
  

Unit Mix Phase 1B 
Building 
Number 

Building 
Height 

# Of 3 
Bedroom 

Units  

# of 2 
Bedroom 

Units 

# of 1 
Bedroom 

Units Total 

TYPE I 1, 5 58' 8 X 2 28 X 2 16 X 2 52 X 2 

TYPE II 2, 3, 4 58' 8 X 3 40 X 3 8  X 3 56 X 3 

TOTALS:     56 176 40 272 

 

99



B.  SITE DATA 
 
     

OVERALL SITE     

PARCEL ID 17-21-28-0000-00-029   

PARCEL AREA 42.17 ACRES 

     FUTURE COMMERCIAL 6.43 ACRES 

     EMERSON POINTE APARTMENTS 18.05 ACRES 

     FUTURE DEVELOPMENT 16.09 ACRES 

     PROPOSED ROW DEDICATION 1.25 ACRES 

STORMWATER FACILITIES 5.8 ACRES 

PROPOSED UNITS 272 
(3) TYPE IV 56-UNIT; (2) 
TYPE III 52-UNIT BLDGS. 

PROPOSED DENSITY 15.0 DU/AC  MAX 15 DU/AC 

OPEN SPACE APPROX. 12.69 AC. (30.1%) 30% REQUIRED 

MAXIMUM MEAN BUILDING HEIGHT: 58' (4 STORY)   

MINIMUM BUILDING SETBACK: 25' FROM BOUNDARY   

FUTURE LAND USE: 

MEDIUM DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL/GROWTH 
CENTER   

CURRENT ZONING: R-3 (10 UNITS/ACRE)   

COMMERCIAL ZONING  

C-1 (NOT PART OF THIS 
PERMIT. WILL BE 
DEVELOPED AT A LATER 
DATE)   

PROJECTED POPULATION     

(2.88 PERSONS/UNIT)(2.1X272) 784 INDIVIDUALS 
SCHOOL AGE POPULATION 
(272X0.235) 64 CHILDREN (SEE NOTES) 

RECREATION REQUIRED:     

(3.6 ACRES/1,000 PERSONS) 2.82 ACRES 

RECREATION PROVIDED: 2.98 ACRES 

TYPE OF UNITS MULTI-FAMILY   

MINIMUM LIVING AREA (UNDER AIR) 750 SQ. FT.   

PARKING PROVIDED     

  REQUIRED PROVIDED 

STANDARD SPACES (9' x 18') 
544 SPACES (2 
SPACES/UNIT) 522 

A.D.A. ACCESSIBLE SPACES (12' x 18') 11 SPACES (2% OF TOTAL) 22 

TOTAL PROVIDED UNIT PARKS   544 

    
EXISTING PROPERTY VEGETATION: 
Pine tree farm 
 
FLOOD ZONE: 
Subject property shown hereon is in Zone X.  See sheet C1.10 for the flood insurance rate map panel number. 
 
SOILS: 
Shown according to the soil survey of Orange County, Florida, See Sheet C1.10. 

100



Marden Ridge

101



 

 

 

 

 

102



 

 

103



Page 104 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

7. CHANGE OF ZONING/SMALL LOT OVERLAY DISTRICT MASTER 

PLAN/PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN – Silver Oaks – owned by 

Tallman Development Company, c/o Ed Hampden; engineer is Poulos & 

Bennett, LLC, c/o Marc Stehli, P.E. – From R-3 to R-3/Small Lot Overlay 

District, for property located north of East Keene Road, west of South Sheeler 

Avenue (2220 S. Sheeler Road). (Parcel ID Nos. 22-21-28-0000-00-078, 22-21-

28-0000-00-079, 22-21-28-0000-00-081, 22-21-28-0000-00-082, 22-21-28-

0000-00-105, 22-21-28-0000-00-108, 22-21-28-0000-00-109, 22-21-28-0000-

00-114, 22-21-28-0000-00-117, 22-21-28-0000-00-122) 

  

104



CITY OF APOPKA 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
____________________________________________________________    _________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING          DATE:  May 12, 2015 
          ANNEXATION           FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL          EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
          OTHER:                Vicinity Map 
                  Adjacent Zoning Map 
                  Adjacent Uses Map 
                  Exhibit A Master Site Plan 
                  Exhibit B Dev. Standards 
                  Exhibit C Site Data 
                  Exhibit D Parking Plan 
                  Exhibit E Park & Rec Plan 
                  Exhibit F Landscape Plan 
                  Exhibit G Archit. Renderings 
                  Exhibit H Small Lot Overlay Ord. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: CHANGE OF ZONING AND MASTER SITE PLAN - SILVER OAK – 
TALLMAN DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, C/O ED HAMPDEN 

     

PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 22-21-28-0000-00-078; -079, -081, -082, -105, -108, -109, -114, -117, -122 
 

Request:     CHANGE OF ZONING 
       FROM:  R-3 (15 DU/AC) (RESIDENTIAL) 
       TO:  R-3/SMALL LOT OVERLAY DISTRICT (RESIDENTIAL) 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT:  Tallman Development Company, c/o Ed Hampden 
 
ENGINEER:     Poulos & Bennett, LLC, c/o Marc Stehli, P.E. 
 
LOCATION:     North of East Keene Road, west of South Sheeler Avenue 
 
EXISTING USE:    Vacant nursery/4 mobile homes 
 
FLUM DESIGNATION:  Residential High Density (0 – 15 du/ac) 
 
ZONING:     R-3 (Residential) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: Single Family Residential Subdivision per the Small Lot Overlay District 

Ordinance – 185 total single family lots 
 
PROPOSED ZONING:  R-3/Small Lot Overlay District (Residential) 
 
TRACT SIZE:    50.59 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE EXISTING: 185 Units 
DEVELOPMENT:   PROPOSED:   up to 685 Units 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 

Mayor Kilsheimer       Finance Director     Public Ser. Director 

Commissioners (4)       HR Director      City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby      IT Director      Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Director       Police Chief   

 

105



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

SILVER OAK – TALLMAN DEVELOPMENT COMPANY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 
 
The subject parcels were annexed into the City of Apopka as follows:  
 

Parcel No(s). Ordnance No. Date Annexed 
22-21-28-0000-00-076 
22-21-28-0000-00-081 
22-21-28-0000-00-082 
22-21-28-0000-00-122 

706 December 30, 1991 

22-21-28-0000-00-105 751 December 16, 1992 

22-21-28-0000-00-109 1824 July 6, 2006 

22-21-28-0000-00-108 
22-21-28-0000-00-117 

2264 June 12, 2012 

22-21-28-0000-00-114 2351 March 19, 2014 

22-21-28-0000-00-078 2352 March 19, 2014 

 
The proposed zoning change is requested by the applicant.   Applicant requests the City to assign a Small Lot 

Overlay to the subject property to allow a mix of single family lots with a minimum width of 40 feet and 50 feet 

for a total of 185 residential homes.  Development will occur according to two development phases. 

 

Development Profile:  
Total Residential Units 185  

50’ width 100 54.1% 

40’ width 85 45.9% 

Phase 1 116  

50’ width 71 61.2% 

40’ width 45 48.8% 

Phase 2 69  

50’ width 26 37.6% 

40’ width 43 62.4% 

   

Open Space 15.18 ac 30%  

   

Park\Recreation 6.27 ac 1.73 ac req. 

   

Parking Four per unit; two enclosed 

 51 overflow spaces 

Min. Livable Area use) 
Max.. 46 units have a min. 
1,500 sq. ft.; remaining to have 
minimum of 1,700 s. ft.   

 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 

adequate public facilities exist to support this zoning change (see attached Zoning Report). 

 

SMALL LOT OVERLAY DISTRICT COMPLIANCE:  The subject property meets the location criteria set 

forth within Section 3.04.05 of the Small Lot Overly Zoning District: 

 

1. The property must be assigned both a Residential High Future Land use Designation and an R-3 zoning 

category.  (Sec. 3.04.05.1.a)  The subject property meets both these requirements, as demonstrated by 

the Future Land Use Map and the Zoning Map. 

 
106



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

SILVER OAK – TALLMAN DEVELOPMENT COMPANY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

2. A Small Lot Overlay District shall not be located within a half mile from another Small Lot Overlay 

District.  (Sec. 3.04.051.b)  Another established Small Lot Overlay District is not located within a half 

mile.   

 

3. Property comprising a Small Lot overlay District shall be contiguous and generally compact. (Sec. 

3.04.05.1.c)  The property meets these criteria as demonstrated by the proposed Master Plan. 

 

4. A boundary line of a Small Lot Overlay District must satisfy one (1) of the following criteria:  b. 

Located within a half mile from an entrance to a limited access highway, or abutting a limited access 

highway.  (Sec. 3.04.05.a)  The entrance to S.R. 414 at Keene Road is a few hundred feet from the 

subject property. 

 

The subject property complies with the development Section 3.04.04, Small Lot Overlay District, by meeting 

the development standards and design guidelines as demonstrated within the proposed Silver Oak Subdivision 

Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:    A School Capacity Enhancement Agreement has been approved by OCPS 

for all parcels. Location served by the following schools: Lakeville Elementary, Piedmont Lakes Middle 

School, and Wekiva High School.  No development activity shall occur on the subject property until the 

developer has obtained a school concurrency mitigation agreement or letter from OCPS. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: 
The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public hearing or advisory board for a 

proposed rezoning or future land use amendment on property abutting unincorporated lands.  The City properly 

notified Orange County on April 10, 2015. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

May 12, 2015 – Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

June 17, 2015 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 1
st
 Reading 

July 1, 2015 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2
nd

 Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

April 24, 2015 – Public Notice and Notification 

May 22, 2015 – Ordinance Heading Ad 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends: 

(1) Approval of the change in zoning from R-3 to R-3/Small Lot Overlay Zoning District for the property 

owned by Tallman Development Company, c/o Ed Hampden, subject to the findings of the Staff Report. 

(2) Waiver Requests: 

a. Section 2.02.07.H.3, LDC, requires a six foot high brick or masonry wall within a five-foot-wide 

bufferyard adjacent to agricultural districts or uses.  Request:  Along the western and northern project 

line, applicant requests to install a six foot high vinyl fence.  DRC does not object to the waiver 

request. 

 

 
107



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

SILVER OAK – TALLMAN DEVELOPMENT COMPANY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

b. Section 3.04.09(2), Small Lot Overlay Zoning District:  No swimming pools are allowed within a small 

lot.  A Small Lot is defined as a lot that has a width of less than 70 feet or a lot area less than 7,000 

square feet. 

 Request:  The applicant requests to prohibit pools on lots less than 50 feet wide.  For lots 50 feet wide or 

greater, the applicant requests to limit pools to certain lots – Lots 1 – 21, 38 – 92, 149 -172.  DRC staff 

does not support this request. 

c. Section 3.04.09(3).  Metal, vinyl, or other similar materials shall not be used for patios, porticos or 

porches that extend beyond the wall of the primary residential structure. Materials used for these 

features shall be compatible with those of the primary residential structure.  Request:  Applicant requests 

to allow screened rooms for pools for Lots 1 -21 and Lots 55 – 92.  DRC does not support this 

request. 

(3) Approval of the Silver Oak Subdivision Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan subject to City approval 

of a development agreement or other legal instrument to establish a special homeowner fee for maintenance 

of the on-street parking. 

Planning Commission Role:  Advisory to City Council.  Planning Commission can recommend to approve, 

deny or to approve with conditions. 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

108



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

SILVER OAK – TALLMAN DEVELOPMENT COMPANY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

ZONING REPORT 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Agricultural (1 du/5 ac) A-1 Active horticultural nursery; vacant lands 

East (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-2 Cobblefield single-family residential community 

South (County) Rural Settlement (1 du/1 ac) 
A-1 Manufactured homes; Apopka Expressway (S.R. 414) toll 

entrance; horticultural nursery 

West (City) Agricultural (1 du/5 ac) AG Horticultural nursery 

 

LAND USE &  

TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: A future land use designation of Residential High Density (HDR) has 

already been assigned to 41.4 acres of the 45.7 total acres comprising the 

Property.   

 

The Property has access to a Collector roadway (East Keene Road) as well 

as to Sheeler Road, designated a local road south of U.S. 441 to Keene 

Road.  Situated less than one hundred and fifty feet from the S.R. 414 toll 

way entrance, the Property allows easy access to a regional highway that 

leads to I-4, S.R. 429 and S.R. 451, and U.S. 441.  North and west of the 

Property, lands are predominantly used for horticultural nursery businesses 

or are vacant lands assigned an agriculture zoning.  Adjacent to the 

northwest corner are a few single family homes on large lots. To the east of 

Sheeler Road are two single family home residential neighborhoods -- 

Cobblefield and Sheeler Hills.  Stonewood Reserve, an unplatted residential 

community, is situated to the northeast of the Property. Located to the 

southeast is Orange County’s western regional water supply facility.  South 

of the Property the area is predominantly used for horticultural nursery 

businesses and the S.R. 414 tollway interchange at Keene Road. 

 

COMPREHENSIVE  

PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed R-3 (Multi-Family Residential) zoning is consistent with the 

City’s Residential High Density Future Land Use Designation, which allows 

up to 15 units per acre. Development plans shall not exceed the density 

allowed under the adopted future land use designation. 

 

R-3 DISTRICT  

REQUIREMENTS:  The R-3 zoning category allows single-family, duplex, and multi-family 

residential development.  Development requirements specific to each of 

these three development options are established within the Land 

Development Code.  The applicant has indicated an interest to pursue multi-

family development based on the residential market.  Minimum 

development standards for multi-family are listed for the R-3 zoning 

category:   

 

 

 

109



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

SILVER OAK – TALLMAN DEVELOPMENT COMPANY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

Minimum Living Sq. Ft.:   

 Apartment 750 sq. ft. 

 Condo/Townhomes 1,350 sq. ft. 

Minimum Site Area: One (1) Acres 

Minimum Low Width: 120 ft. 

Setbacks: Front 50 ft. between buildings 

 Rear 50 ft. between buildings 

 Side 20 ft. between buildings 

 Corner 25 ft. 

 

BUFFER-YARD  

REQUIREMENTS:  Areas adjacent to all road rights-of-way shall provide a minimum six- (6') 

foot high brick, stone or decorative finished block wall erected inside a 

minimum ten (10) foot wide landscaped buffer-yard. Landscape materials 

shall be placed adjacent to the right-of-way, on the exterior of the buffer 

wall. 

 

ALLOWABLE USES:  Multi-family development up to 15 units per acre, duplex, or single family 

residential subject to Section 2.02.07 of the Land Development Code.  

  

110



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

SILVER OAK – TALLMAN DEVELOPMENT COMPANY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

Silver Oaks 
Keene Road Apopka LLC/Nelson Apopka Ltd. 

50.59 +/- Acres 
Existing Maximum Allowable Development: 185 Units 

Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 685 Units 
Proposed Zoning Change: 

From: R-3 to R-3/Small Lot Overlay District (Residential) 

Parcel ID #s:  22-21-28-0000-00-078 22-21-28-0000-00-079 22-21-28-0000-00-081 

       22-21-28-0000-00-082 22-21-28-0000-00-105 22-21-28-0000-00-108 

       22-21-28-0000-00-109 22-21-28-0000-00-114 22-21-28-0000-00-117

       22-21-28-0000-00-122 

 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

  

Subject Property 

111



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

SILVER OAK – TALLMAN DEVELOPMENT COMPANY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 
 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

  

112



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

SILVER OAK – TALLMAN DEVELOPMENT COMPANY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

113



 

  

EXHIBIT “A” 

114



  

115



 

 

116



          EXHIBIT “B” 
 
 
Section 3.12., Mailbox Kiosk Design; Residential Design Standards, Development Design 
Guideline  
 
Design and appearance of a mailbox kiosk are compatible with the architectural theme for homes 
and community buildings in the residential community.  Mailbox kiosks are covered by a shelter 
structure sufficient to protect the patron, mail, and delivery personnel from inclement weather.  
Acceptable and Undesirable design examples appear below. 
 
A.  Mailbox Kiosk (aka Cluster Mailbox Shelters) 
 

1.  Acceptable Design Examples 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.  Undesirable Design Examples 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

117



 

EXHIBIT “C” 

118



 

EXHIBIT “D” 

119



 

 EXHIBIT “E” 

120



  

EXHIBIT “F” 

121



  

122



  

123



  

124



 

  

125



 

126



 

 

  EXHIBIT “G” 

127



 

  

128



 

129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



Page 140 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. MASS GRADING PLAN - Marden Ridge – owned by Emerson Point Associates, 

LLLP; Applicant MMI Development, Inc., c/o Michael E. Wright, Esq.; Engineer 

GAI Consultants, Inc., c/o Anthony Call, P.E., for property located Between S.R. 

451 and Marden Road, south of Ocoee Apopka Road, and north of the Apopka 

Expressway. (Parcel ID No. 17-21-28-0000-00-029) 

  

140



CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  May 12, 2015 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 
          OTHER:          Mass Grading Plan 
            
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: MASS GARDING PLAN - MARDEN RIDGE APARTMENTS - PHASE 1A  
 

Request: RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE MASS GRADING PLAN FOR MARDEN 
RIDGE APARTMENTS (PARCEL ID NUMBER: 17-21-28-0000-00-029) 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
SUMMARY 
 
OWNERS:   Emerson Point Associates, LLLP 
 
APPLICANT:   MMI Development, Inc., c/o Michael E. Wright, Esq. 
 
ENGINEER:   GAI Consultants, Inc., c/o Anthony Call, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: Between S.R. 451 and Marden Road, south of Ocoee Apopka Road, and north of 

the S.R. 414 
 
EXISTING USE:  Planted Pine 
 
FUTURE LAND USE:  Residential High (0-15du/ac)\Commercial 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  R-3  
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: Apartment (272 units/5 Buildings) and Retail Commercial\Mass Grading of Final 

Development Plans 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-3/C-1)  
 
TRACT SIZE:   Apartments: 18.05 +/- Acres  

    Retail Commercial: 6.43 +/- Acres 

Overall Site: 42.17 +/- Acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 536 Units (35.74 ac) 
    PROPOSED: 272 Units (Phase 1B) on 18.05 ac 
 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer      Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director    Police Chief   
 
G:\Shared\4020\Planning_Zoning\Site Plans\2015\1 Marden Ridge Mass Grading Plan – PC 05-12-15 
 141



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

MARDEN RIDGE APARTMENTS– MASS GRADING PLAN 
PAGE 2 
 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Commercial  C-1 Vacant Land; Ocoee Apopka Road 

East (City) Residential Medium (0-10 
du\ac) 

R-3 Vacant Land 

East (County) Low-Medium Density (0-10 
un\ac) 

R-2, R-3 Marden Garden apartments, Vacant 

Land 

South (City) Mixed Use Mixed-EC S.R. 414\vacant land\Emerson Park 

West (City) Industrial\Residential Medium 

Density 

R-3 

I-1 

S.R. 451\Warehouse\vacant land 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:     The proposed mass grading plan for the proposed Marden Ridge apartment 

project allows site grading to occur consistent with the ground elevations and contours established within the 

Marden Ridge Apartment-Phase 1B Master Site Plan\Preliminary Development Plan.  All required permits from 

the St. Johns Water Management District and other state agencies must be obtained by the applicant prior to 

commencing any grading activities.   Planted pine has already been harvested from the subject property, leaving 

few canopy trees.   

 

HAUL ROUTE:  Marden Road south to Keene Road; W. Keene Road eastward to S.R. 414, as illustrated on 

Sheet C3.00 of the Mass Grading Plan. 

  

ENVIRONMENTAL:  A habitat management plan was submitted by the applicant.  Based on the results of 

this study, the developer must obtain approval from the Florida Department of Environmental Protection prior 

to commencing any grading or further site construction activity. 

 

TREE PROGRAM: The planted pine located on this site is exempt from the arbor mitigation requirements and 

was harvested for silviculture purposes.  The maximum tree stock formula requires a total of 2,752 tree inches 

to be replanted onto the site.  The applicant will be required to demonstrate the site meets this tree stock re-

quirement on the final development plan or contribute into the tree bank mitigation program.   

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: No development activity can occur until such time that a concurrency miti-

gation agreement or letter has been approved by OCPS.  The applicant has applied to OCPS for this agreement. 

The schools designated to serve this community are the following: Wheatley Elementary, Wolf Lake Middle 

and Apopka High School.  

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The County was notified at the time of the land use amendment and 

rezoning application for this property, and coordination occurred with County planning staff regarding impact 

on adjacent parcels.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

May 12, 2015 –  Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

June 3, 2015 – City Council (1:30 pm)  

 

 

 142



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

MARDEN RIDGE APARTMENTS– MASS GRADING PLAN 
PAGE 3 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Marden Ridge Apartments Ph.1A Mass 

Grading Plan for the property owned by Emerson Point Associates, LLLP. 

 

Planning Commission Recommendation:  The role of the Planning Commission for this development 

application is to advise the City Council to approve, deny, or approve with conditions based on consistency with 

the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

143



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

MARDEN RIDGE APARTMENTS– MASS GRADING PLAN 
PAGE 4 
 

Marden Ridge Apartments 
Emerson Point Associates, LLLP 

MMI Development, Inc. c/o Michael E. Wright, Esq. 
Retail Commercial: 6.43 +/- Acres 

Apartments: 18.05 +/- Acres (272 Units) 
42.17 +/- Total Acres 

Parcel ID #: 17-21-28-0000-00-029 
 

 

VICINITY MAP 
 

Subject 
Property 

144



145



M
A

R
D

E
N

 R
ID

G
E

 A
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
S

  
- 

P
H

A
S

E
 1

A
P

O
P

K
A

, 
F

L
O

R
ID

A

B 

B 

A
 

A
 

146



M
A

R
D

E
N

 R
ID

G
E

 A
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
S

  
- 

P
H

A
S

E
 1

A
P

O
P

K
A

, 
F

L
O

R
ID

A

147



SILT FENCE APPLICATIONS
SCALE: NTS

SYNTHETIC BALES BACKED BY FENCE
SCALE: NTS

CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES AND

CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES:

GENERAL CONSTRUCTION NOTES: EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL NOTES: ENGINEER CERTIFICATION:

STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN NOTES:

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION:

TREE PROTECTION DETAIL
SCALE: NTS

TYPE III SILT FENCE
SCALE: NTS

INLET PROTECTION
SCALE: NTS

M
A

R
D

E
N

 R
ID

G
E

 A
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
S

  
- 

P
H

A
S

E
 1

A
P

O
P

K
A

, 
F

L
O

R
ID

A

148



M
A

R
D

E
N

 R
ID

G
E

 A
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
S

  
- 

P
H

A
S

E
 1

A
P

O
P

K
A

, 
F

L
O

R
ID

A

LOCATION MAP

149



Page 150 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT – Rock Springs Estates, owned by Rock 

Springs Estates; applicant is Pulte Group, c/o Doug Hoffman, P.E.; engineering 

firm is Donald W. McIntosh Associates, Inc., c/o John T. Townsend, P.E., 

located south of West Lester Road, east of Vick Road. (Parcel ID Nos. 3-20-28-

0000-00-015, 33-20-28-0000-00-118, 33-20-28-0000-00-003) 

  

150



CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

     X     PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  May 12, 2015 

             SPECIAL REPORTS      FROM: Community Development 

             PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

             OTHER:           Site Plan 

           Landscape Plans 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT - ROCK SPRINGS ESTATES, 

LOCATED SOUTH OF WEST LESTER ROAD, EAST OF VICK ROAD 

 

Request: RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT 

PLAN/PLAT FOR ROCK SPRINGS ESTATES, LOCATED SOUTH OF 

WEST LESTER ROAD, EAST OF VICK ROAD. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 

 
OWNER:   Rock Springs Estates, LLC  
 
APPLICANT:   Pulte Group, c/o Doug Hoffman, P.E. 
 
PROJECT ENGINEER: Donald W. McIntosh Associates, Inc., c/o John T. Townsend, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: South of West Lester Road, east of Vick Road. 
 
EXISTING USE:  One (1) single family residence/vacant land 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Residential Low Suburban (Max. 3.5 du/ac)  
 
ZONING:   R-1 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: Single-family Residential Subdivision (60 Lots; min. 8,000 sq. ft. lot area) 
 
TRACT SIZE:   25.84 +/- acres 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION:      
 
Mayor Kilsheimer  Finance Director  Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)           HR Director         City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby           IT Director         Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director           Police Chief   
 
G:\Shared\4020\Planning_Zoning\Subdivision\Rock Springs Estates\1 Rock Springs Estates FDP/PLAT – PC 05-12-15 

 151



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

ROCK SPRINGS ESTATES – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 
PAGE # 2 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City)  Res. Low Suburban (0 -3.5 du/ac) R-1/ZIP Vacant Land/SFR 

East (City) Res. Low R-2 SFR 

South (County) Low Density Res. (Max. 4 du/ac) A-2 World of Life Church of Apopka 

South (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-3 Wekiva Crest Subdivision 

West (City) Residential Low (0-5.0 du/ac) R-3 Cambridge Commons Subdivision 

 
Project Use:  The Rock Springs Estates Final Development Plan/Plat proposes the development of 60 single family 
residential lots and a 0.42 acre park.  The minimum typical lot width is 75 feet with a minimum lot size of 8,000 square feet.  
The proposed minimum living area for the subdivision is 1,500 square feet as set forth in Chapter 2 of the Land 
Development Code.      
 
The minimum setbacks applicable to this project are: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
        *Front-entry garage must be setback 30 feet. 
 
Access:  Ingress/egress for the development will be via full access from West Lester Road.  A second road 
connection is proposed at the southeast corner of the project.  Extension of this second road may occur at the 
time the abutting eastern parcel is developed for residential use.  A multi-use trail currently runs along the south 
side of Lester Road.  The landscape buffer tract along Lester Road has taken into consideration the presence of 
this multi-use trail.   
 
Stormwater: The two (2) retention ponds have been designed to meet the City’s Land Development Code 
requirements.   
 
Recreation: The developer is providing a 0.42 acre (18,200 sq. ft.) tot lot and recreation area.  At the time of the 
final development plan application, details of active and passive recreation equipment and facilities will be 
submitted for the City’s review. The park will be owned and maintained by the homeowners association.   
 
Buffer/Tree Program:  Buffers are provided consistent with the Land Development.  The City’s Land 
Development Code and Tree Bank policy authorize the City Council to require the applicant to make a 
contribution to the City’s Tree Bank to mitigate the remaining tree inches for the residential section. The 
Applicant has committed to pay $10.00 per deficient tree inch (totaling $580.00) into the Tree Bank prior to 
issuance of the initial Arbor/Clearing permit.  The landscaping median at the entrance to Rock Springs Estates 
will be placed into a separate tract that will be owned and maintained by the homeowners association. 
 
The following is a summary of the tree replacement program for this project: 
 
Total inches on-site:  1,042 
Total number of specimen trees: 8 
Total inches removed:  602 
Total inches retained: 440 
Total inches replaced:  544 
Total Inches (Post Development): 984 

 

Setback 
Min. 

Standard 
Front* 25’ 
Side 10’ 
Rear 20’ 
Corner 25’ 

152



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

ROCK SPRINGS ESTATES – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 
PAGE # 3 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  Affected Schools: Rock Springs Elementary, Apopka Memorial Middle 

and Apopka High School.  No development activity can occur until such time that a concurrency mitigation 

agreement or letter has been approved by OCPS.  The applicant has applied to OCPS for this agreement.  

 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The County was notified at the time of the land use amendment and 
rezoning application for this property, and coordination occurred with County planning staff regarding impact 
on adjacent parcels.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
May 12, 2015 - Planning Commission, 5:01 p.m. 
May 20, 2015 - City Council, 7:00 p.m.  
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the ROCK SPRINGS ESTATES FINAL 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT, subject to the findings of the staff report. 
 
Planning Commission Recommendation:  Recommend approval of the ROCK SPRINGS ESTATES FINAL 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT, subject to the findings of the staff report. 
 
The role of the Planning Commission for this development application is to advise the City Council to approve 
or deny based on consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

153



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 12, 2015 

ROCK SPRINGS ESTATES – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 
PAGE # 4 
 

Application:  Rock Springs Estate Subdivision Final Development Plan/Plat 
Owner:  Rock Springs Estates, LLC  
Applicant:  Pulte Group, c/o Doug Hoffman, P.E. 
Project Eng.:  Donald W. McIntosh Associates, Inc., c/o John T. Townsend, P.E. 
Parcel ID No’s:    33-20-28-0000-00-015, 33-20-28-0000-00-118, 33-20-28-0000-00-003 
Total Acres:  25.84 +/- 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 
 

 

Subject 

Property 

154



  

 

155



 

  

156



 

157



  

158



 

159


	Top
	1 05-12-15 - PC - Meeting Procedures - Andrew Hand, Esq., Shepard, Smith &amp; Cassady, P.A.
	Quasi-Judicial Hearing Structure.pdf

	1 05-12-15 - PC - Minutes - Approval of the April 14, 2015, PC Minutes
	PC 04-14-15 Minutes.pdf

	1. 05-12-15 - PC - Public Hearing - FLUM Amendment - Everlasting Covenant Christian Center - 1250 Piedmont Wekiwa Road
	Everlasting Cov Christian Cen - 1250 Piedmont Wekiwa Rd -  FLU - PC 05-12-15.pdf

	2. 05-12-15 - PC - Public Hearing - Change of Zoning - Everlasting Covenant Christian Center - 1250 Piedmont Wekiwa Road
	Everlasting Cov Christian Cen - 1250 Piedmont Wekiwa Rd -  ZON - PC 05-12-15.pdf

	3. 05-12-15 - PC - Public Hearing - FLUM Amendment - Joseph E. and Jeff P. Ball - 1166 Piedmont Wekiwa Road
	Joseph E_Jeff P Ball - 1166 Piedmont Wekiwa Road FLU - PC 05-12-15.pdf

	4. 05-12-15 - PC - Public Hearing - Change of Zoning - Joseph E. &amp; Jeff P. Ball - 1166 Piedmont Wekiwa Road
	Joseph E_Jeff P Ball - 1166 Piedmont Wekiwa Road - ZON - PC 05-12-15.pdf

	5. 05-12-15 - PC - Public Hearing - Change of Zoning/Master Plan - Avian Pointe - Apopka Clear Lake Investments, LLC
	1 Avian Pointe - Apopka Clear Lk Invest ZON - PC - 05-12-15.pdf
	2 Exhibit A - Avian Pointe - Apopka Clear Lk Invest - Master Site Plan.pdf
	3 Exhibit B - Avian Pointe Avian Pointe Development Standards.pdf
	3a Exhibit B1 - Avian Pointe - Apopka Clear Lk Invest - Design Standards.pdf
	4 Exhibit C - Avian Pointe - Apopka Clear Lk Invest - Landscape Plans.pdf
	5 Exhibit D - Avian Pointe - Apopka Clear Lk Invest - Open Space_Rec Plan.pdf
	6 Exhibit E - Avian Pointe - Apopka Clear Lk Invest - Prototype Renderings.pdf
	7 Exhibit F - Flex Space Permitted Uses.pdf

	6. 05-12-15 - PC - Public Hearing - Change of Zoning - Marden Ridge - MMI Development
	1 Marden Ridge ZON PUD - PC 05-12-15.pdf
	2 Marden Ridge Site_Landscape Plan.pdf
	3 PDP Design Standards Sheet C2.10.pdf
	4 Marden Ridge Building Elevation.pdf
	5 Marden Ridge Sample Building Pictures.pdf

	7. 05-12-15 - PC - Public Hearing - Change of Zoning/Master Plan - Silver Oaks - Tallman Development Company
	1 Silver Oaks - ZON - PC 05-12-15.pdf
	2 Exhibit A - Silver Oaks - Tallman Development - Master Plan.pdf
	3 Exhibit B - Disign Guidelines Mailbox Kiosks.pdf
	4 Exhibit C - Silver Oaks - Tallman Development - Site Data.pdf
	5 Exhibit D - Silver Oaks - Tallman Development - Parking Plan.pdf
	6 Exhibit E - Silver Oaks - Tallman Development - Parks &amp; Recreation Plan.pdf
	7 Exhibit F - Silver Oaks - Tallman Development - Landscape Plan.pdf
	8 Exhibit G - Silver Oaks - Tallman Development - Archtectural Renderings.pdf
	9 Exhibit H - Small Lot Overlay Ordinance.pdf

	1. 05-12-15 - PC - Site Plans - Mass Grading Plan - Marden Ridge
	1 Marden Ridge Mass Grading Plan - PC 05-12-15.docx
	2 A120273_03 MASS GRADING PLANS MAY2015.pdf

	2. 05-12-15 - PC - Site Plans - Final Development Plan/Plat - Rock Springs Estates
	1 Rock Springs Estates FDP_Plat - PC - 05-12-15.pdf
	2 Rock Springs Estates Site_Landscape Plans.pdf

	Bottom

